SKE Bariison&a Co, LLP

Chartered Acgounianis

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Gateway Rail Freight Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of Gateway Rail Freight
Limited (“the Company™), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2019, the Statement of
Profit and Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and
the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone [nd AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013, as amended (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2019, its profit including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in
equity tor the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit ot the standalone Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing {SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are turther described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind
AS Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the *Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act
and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Cede of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial
statements.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Directors Report, but does not include the standalone Ind AS
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone fnd AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and. in doing so. consider whether such other information is materially
mconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.
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Responsibility of Management for the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the fwiancial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income. cash flows
and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act
read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility
also mcludes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
tor sateguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
rregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent: and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the standalone Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing. as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone Ind AS financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
tndividually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decistons
of users taken on the basis of these standalone Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

= Identity and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may invelve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions. misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

+  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

+  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and. based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. [ we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
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auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modity our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continie as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone Ind AS financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

o

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order™), issued by the Central
Government of [ndia in terms of sub-section {11} of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure |7 a statement on the matters specitied in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that;

{a}

{b)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(¢)

We have sought and obtained all the iformation and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and beliet were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
tar as it appears from our examination of those books:

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

In our opinton, the aferesatd standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 20135, as amended;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2019
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company with reference to these standalone Ind AS financial statements and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 27 to this report;

[n cur opinion, the managerial remuneration for the vear ended March 31, 2019 has heen paid
/ provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read
with Schedule V to the Act:
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(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 1 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

t.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in
its standalone Ind AS financial statements ~ Refer Note 31 to the standalone Ind AS
financial statements;

it.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

tit.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

For §.R. Batliboi & CO. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

I

G G e
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per Vishal Sharma

Partner

Membership Number: 096766
Place: Gurugram

Date: May 13, 20149




SR Barupors Co, LLP

Chartgred Accountants

Annexure ‘1’ referred to in paragraph under the heading “Report on other legat and regulatory
requirements” of our report of even date

Re: Gateway Rail Freight Limited (“the Company™)

(i)a)

(b)

(i

(i)

(iv)

v)

{v)

(vii)(a)

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets.

Fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the year and no material
discrepancies were identified on such verification.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the title deeds of
imimovable properties, included in property, plant and equipment are held in the name of the
Company. except for land situated at Asaoti having gross and net book value of Rs. 20.33 lakhs
as at March 31, 2019, whose title deeds are not held in the Company’s name as the agreement
was entered into by the guardian’s (sellers) on behalf of the minor {original owner).

Further, title deeds in respect of certain immovable properties having gross and net book value
of Rs. 19,282.04 lakhs included in plant. property and equipment are pledged with HDFC Bank
and are not available with the Company.

The Company’s business does not involve inventories and. accordingly, the requirements under
paragraph 3(it) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the mformation and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any
toans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties
covered in the register maintained under section [89 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly,
the provistons of clause 3(iii) (a), (b} and (¢) of the Order are not applicable to the Company
and hence not commented upon.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no loans,
investments, guarantees, and securities granted in respect of which provisions of section 185
and 186 of the Companies Act 2013 are applicable and hence not commented upon.

The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act
and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3{v} of the Order are not applicable.

To the best of our knowledge and as explained. the Central Government has not specified the
maintenance of cost records under Section [48(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, for the
products/services of the Company,

The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues
including provident fund, employees” state insurance. income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty
of custom, value added tax, goods and service tax. cess and other statutory dues applicable to

it. The provisions relating to duty of excise are not applicable to the Company.
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(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in

(viii)

(ix})

(x)

(x)

(xir)

(xiii)

(xiv)

{xv)

respect of provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, service tax, sales-tax, duty
of custom, value added tax, goods and service tax, cess and other statutory dues were
outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable. The provisions relating to duty of excise are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of income tax,
sales-tax, service tax, customs duty, value added tax, goods and services tax. cess and other
statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of any dispute. The provisions relating
to duty of excise are not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management.
the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to a financial institution,
bank as at balance sheet date. The Company does not have any loans or borrowings from
Government, nor has it issued any debentures as at balance sheet date.

In our opinton and according to the information and explanations given by the management,
the monies raised by way of term loans were applied for the purposes for which they were
raised.

Further based on the information and explanation given by the management, the Company has
not raised any money by way of initial public offer / further public offer / debt instruments.

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view
of the financial statements and according to the information and explanations given by the
management, we report that no fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company by
the ofticers and employees of the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the managerial
remuneration has been paid / provided in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by
the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act. 2013.

In our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xi)
of the order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon,

According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions with the
related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where
applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the fiancial statements, as
required by the applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
balance sheet, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the vear under review and hence,
reporting requirements under clause 3(xiv) are not applicable to the company and, hence not
commented upon,

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not
entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him as referred
to in section 192 of Companies Act, 2013
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{xvi)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of section 45-1A of
the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

\f (=4
per Vishal Sharma
Partner
Membership Number: 096766
Place: Gurugram

Date: May 13, 2019
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
IND AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF GATEWAY RAIL FREIGHT LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Gateway Rail Freight Limited
(“the Company™) as of March 31, 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and etficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
{(the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing as specitied under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and, both issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial coutrols over financial reporting with reference to these
financial statements were established and maintained and it such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating etfectiveness of internal controls based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the tinancial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufticient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
financial statements.




SE Bartimpoir & Lo, LILP

Chartared Accouniants

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with reference to these
financial statements

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these financial
statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with
reference to these financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only
in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with reference to
these financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference
to these financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections
of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over
fimancial reporting with reterence to these financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree ot compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference fo these financial statements and such internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these financial statements were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2019, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the [nstitute of Chartered Accountants
of India.

For S.R. BATLIBOI & CO. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

per Vishal Sharma
Partner

Membership No.: 096766
Place: Gurugram

Date: May 13, 2019




GAFTEWAY RAIL FREIGHT LIMITED
CIN: U60231DL2005PLL138508
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2019
{AlLamounts in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes Asat As at

31 March zo1g 31 March zo18
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets.
Property, Plant and Lquigiment 3 76,03¢.58 TO,008. 12
Capital work-in-progress 3€a) 159.59 L 141.08
Other Intangible Assets 4 2,306.95 2,560.94
Investment in Joint Venture 5 - -
Financinl Assets
(i} Other Financial Assets 6(e) 66073 376,20
(it} Loans 6(f) - -
Income Tax Assets (net} 9 G770 799
Other Non-Ctivrent Assets 8 558.61 83190
Total Non-Current Assets B1,272.26 84,749.83
Current Assets
Finencial assets
{i) Investments 6(a) 2,222.04 978218
{ii) Trade Reveivabley 6(b) 7.598.00 7.387.30
(iii} Cash and Cash Equivalents 6(c) 57342 340045
(iv} Bank Balances other than {ii) sbove 6{d) 2.86 -
(v} Other Financial Assets 6€e) 408,23 72752
Other Current Assets 10 741285 205.73
Total Current Assets 11,545.80 22,202,23
TOTAL ASSETS 02,8:18.56 106,952.006
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Lquity
Equity Share Capital ti(a) 20,150.03 20,150.03
Instruments Entirelv Equity in Nature 11(h) 20,580.00 29,580.00
Reserve & Surpius 1t{e} 17,0011 29,046.17
Total Equity 06,731.15 70,376.20
LIABILITIES
Non- t Liabilitie:
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 12 11,8181 15,142.09
Emplovee Benefit Dhligations 13 673.57 453.44
Deferred Tax Linhilities (net) 7 785.62 841.46
Government Grant {EPCG) 18 358.97 401.68
Total Non-Current Eigbilities 13,033.2 16,838.67
C ot Linhiliti
Financial Habilities
{i) Borrowings ¥ 103323 1,001.05
(ii} Trace Pavables
- Total Outstanding dues of Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises 15 131.06 135.88
- Total Outstanding dues of Creditors other than Micro Enterprises and Small . 28150 « G0S.an
Fnterprises 3 44035 S.908.42
(iii) ther Financial Linbilities 16 5.035.70 4.123.08
Employee Benefit Obligations 13 70.60 84.77
Other Current Liabilities 17 L,817.00 1,349.35
Government Grant {EPCG) 18 83.07 84.04
Totad Current Liabilities 12,454.14 10,737.19
TOTAL LIABILITIES 26,087.41 27,575.86
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 92,818.56 106,952.06

The above balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
In terms of vur report of even date.
For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Prirectors of
Chartered Accountants Gatesway Rail Freight Limited
[CAL Firm registration number. @ 3010038/ E300005 .
A — -
J i o 7.

per Vishal Sharma
Partner
Membership No. : 96766

DIN:- o070

Prem Kishan Dass Gupta
Chatirzran and Managing Director

Sachin Surendra Bhanushali
Director, Chief Executive Officer
and Chief Financial Offtcer

DIN:- 22479018

Place: New Dalhi
Date: day 13, 2010

Sentor Vice President (Finanee and Accounts)
and Company Secretary

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 13,2019



GATEWAY RAIL FREIGHT LIMETED
CIN: U60231DL20o05PLC138598

Statement of Profit and Loss for the vear ended 31 March, 2019

(Al amounts in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Year Ended

Year Lnded

Notes 31 March zo19 31 March 2018
Continuing Operations
Revenue From Operations 19 86,741.46 78,879.90
Cther Income 20 1,023.65 1,39L.57
Total Income 87,765,111 80,271,513
EXPENSES
Operating Expenses 21 56,749.94 54.823.40
Employee Benefits Expenses 22 3.865.10 2818.1
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 23 5,732.31 5.586.57
Finance Costs 24 1.460.31 2,045.54
Other Expeases 25 6,600.47 5,240.56
Total Expenses 23,847,413 70,516.09
Profit before tax 13,917.98 9:753.44
Inceme Tax Expense 26
-- Current Year 2,815.94 L893.67
-- Deferred Tax {30.29) {456.32)
Total Tax Expense 2,785.63 1.437.36
Profit for the year 11,132.33 8,318.08
Other Comprehensive ncome
Ttems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations 13 (73.13) (20.17)
Income tax refating to the above 25.55 6.08
Other Comprehensive Income for the year, net of tax {17.58) (t3.19)
‘Fotal Comprehensive Income for the vear 11,084.75 8.304.80
Earnings per equity share 34
-~ Basic and Diluted earnings per share (INR) 2.76 2.06

The above statement of profit and loss should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

I terms of our repost of even date.

For 8.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAT Firm registration number. : 301003 E/Ez00005

per Vishal Sharma
Partner
Membership No. : 96766

Plicer New Delbi
Date: May t3, 2019

For and ot behalf of the Board of Directors af

Gateway Rail Freight Limited

Sachin Surendra Bhanushali
Digector, Chief Executive Officer
and Chief Financial Officer

DIN:- 01479918

Prem Kishan Dass Gupta
Chairnman and Managing Director
[N 0o01b70

Nandan Chopra

Sertor Vice Prestdent
{Finance and Accounts) and
Company Secretary

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 13, 2019



TEWAY RAIL FREIGHT LIMITED
L Ubo231DL2005PLCI38598

(AN 2monnts in Lakhs, upless othenviss stabxt}

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 dMareh 201y

A

Equity Share Capital

Particulars

Amount

As at 1 Aprit 2o17

Changes in eonity share capital

50,550,903 ]

As at 31 March 2008 {Refer Note 11)

Chatnges iy eguity share capital

20,650.073

As at a1 March 209 {Refer Note 12}

20,850,003

Instruments entirely equity in natere - Compulsory Convertible Prefecence Shares

Particulars

Amount

ak 1 April 2017

As ak a1 March 2068 (Refer Note 14}

29.580.00
25 480,010

As at 31 March 2oty (Refer Note 11}

24.580.00

Other Equity attributable to cepity sharcholders

Equity component Reserves and Surphus Fotal
of compound ~ - - o -

Paticalars financial Security Premium (,ap\tu! R'ctzu_nerl

s < insteimest Reserve Redemplion Earnings

Reserve
(Refer Note 30}

Balance as at 4 April 2o 8635.67 132.05 - B4 2AMy, Y 2 G.G5
Trofit for the vear - “ - 33808 8808
Other comprehensive income, net of tax - - - farsa) (1380
‘Tatal comprehensive incame for the year - - 8.430.4.Rg R304.8¢

Fransfer (from} / 1o retained earnings
Redemption of Eyuity component of cotponnd fnancial instrnnent

(Bag, >;]

ELAO0.00

(11.500.00)

{863.67)

Balance as at 3t darch 2018

Less : Impact on adoption of Ind AS 115

Restated Balance as at 1 April 2018

Profit fur the vear
Otizer comprehensive income. net of tix

"Tokal comnprehensive ineome for the vear

Cosh dlividends
Lividend disteibution tax

Balance as at 31 March 2019

Dz terms of onr report of even data.

Il 12,05 LLE00.04 18.014,12 29,040.17
L - - 2420
- 42,05 ELGOU.00 £7.089. q(-
- - z f47.581
- - - 11.084.75
- - - L.HGy. zt 11 663,71
- . : 4,048 03 4:041.03

- 32.05 L0000 3.309.07 A17.001.12

The abave Statement of changes in enuity shonld be read in coninnetion with the accompanying rotes,
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of -

For 5.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
AL Firme registoation namber. : 301003/ E500003

f\

P

per V:simi ShiFma
Partuer
Mewmbership No, : 96766

Place: New Dzlhi
[rate: May 13, 2010

Gateway Rail Freight Limited

Prem Kishan Dass Gupta

<l
DIN:- 0001870

Nandan Chopra

itrman and Managing Director

Y\%/V‘\M-

Sachin Surendra Bhanushaki
Director, Chief Exeentive Officer
and Chief Finaneiad Officer

DIN:- 01476018

Senior Vice President {Firance and Accounts} amd

Company Seeretary

Place: New Delhi
Drate: May 13, 2010




GATEWAY RAIL FREIGHT LIMITED
CIN: Ubnzz1Rl2oosPLC138598

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 Mareh zo19

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per the cash flow statement

Cash and Cash Equivalents as per above comprise of the following

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Bank Balance in Carrent Account

Cheqpees on hand

Bank Deposits with maturity of pedoed less than 3 menths

Bank Overdrafts
Ralanees per statement of eash flows

The above statement of cash flow should be read in conjunction with the accompanying noetes,

In terms of our report of even date.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartersd Acconntants
ICAI Firm registration number. : 301003E/E300005

per Vishal Sharma -
Partner
Membership No. : 96766

Place: New Delhi
Date: May g, 2019

Notes

G6ic)
6ic)
6ie)
6(c)

Year Ended
21 March 2019
Repees in Lakhs

Y¥ear Ended
3t March 2018
Rupees in Lakhs

12.46 26,10

533.27 7339
27.69 .

- 2,700.00

57342 349949

(540.23) {496.06)

3319 3:003%-43

For ard on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Gateway Rail Freight Limited

Prem Kishan Drass Gupta
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Managing Director
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Directar, Chief Executive Officer
and Chief Fiancial Officer
DIN:- 01479918

Senior Vies President
(Finaznce and Accounts}
and Company Secretary

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 13, 2010



GATEWAY RAIL FREIGHT LIMITED
CIN: UbnagtDizoosPLC138598
Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended 31 March 2019

Year Ended

Year Ended

Notes 31 March 2019 31 Mapch 2018
Rupees in Lakhs Rupees in Lakhs
A Cash flow from eperating activities:
Profit Before income tax from
Continuing Operations 13,917.94 975544
Discontinued operations - -
Adjustments for:
Brepreciation aad amortisation expensy 23 573231 5.589.57
Provision for Doubtiul Debts {Net) 245 90.9Y 6806
Provision for Doubtful Ground Rent (Net) 25 21 A8 (3201}
Provision for Donbtful Advances 25 -
Gain on sale of vestments {(Net) 20 {572.52)
Changes in fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit oz loss 20 (22.04)
Loss/ {(Giain) on Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment -5 2441
Finance Costs 24 1,960.31
Dividend Income classifind as investing cash flows 0 (27.67} -
Interest Income classified as investing cash ows 20 {7421} 57.12)
Net exchange ditferences 20 {2044} TLET
Liabilities/ Provisions no Longer Reguired Written Back z0 {10286} {121.13)
Operating Proiit before working capital changes 20,.427.64 16,230.43
Change in Operating assets and Habilities:
- (Inerease)/ Decrease in Trade Receivables o(h) {30171} (1,002.83)
- Increase/ (Decrease) in Trade Pavables 15 423,13 756,34
- {Tnerease)/ Decrease tn Other Financial Assets S(e) (849} {103.62)
- (Increase)/ Decrease in Gther Current Assels 10 B9 (268.54)
- {Increase)/ Decrease in Other Non Current Assets 8 3.04 18.56
- {Inesrense)/ Decrease in Cther Bank Balinces Not considered as Cash and 2.86) N B
Cash Equivalents G{d) (286 0497
- Increase/ (Decrease) in Employvee Benefit Obligation 13 132.83 (3.63)
- Inerease/ (Decrease) i Other Finanelal Binbilities 16 TOD50 23230
- Increase/ (Decrense) in Gther Current Linbilities 17 467.65 507,60
Cash generated from operations 21,000.02 16.461.54
- [ncome Taxes Paid ) 3.033.65 1.995.08
Net cash inflow from operating activities (A} 18.875.97 14,5 06.46
B. Cash flow from investing activities @
Purchage of Property, Plant and equipment 3 {2.381.40) {6,506.63)
Proceeds from Peoperty, Plant and equipment 3 1.5 3.32
(Increase}/ Decrease in Fixed Deposits with Banks 6{e) (58.50) 86,99
Pavments for purchase of [nvestments 6{a) {2,200.00) {0.504.39)
Proeseds from sale of Investments 6{n} 10,382.37 20,606.02
interest Received 20 129.89 15.60
Net cash outflow from investing activities . (B} £,00:4,68 14,904,805
C. Cash flow from financing activities :
Proveeds of Long-Term Borsowings b2 - 376,26
Repawment of Long-Term Borrowings 12 {2.685.54) (22,776.57}
Repayment of Equity Component of Compound Financial Instrument - {86567}
Diividesnd Paid to Share holdess (t,663.71) -
Bividend Distribution Tax {4.041.93} -
Interest Paid 24 {14593 {2.083.07)
Net eash intlow from tinancing activities (C) {(27.850.29) 26.348.95)
Net Increase/ {(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents {A+B+C) £2,970.24) 3.112.36
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the vear 6(c) 2.003.43 (108.93)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 33.19 3.003.43




GATEWAY RAIL FREIGHF LIMITED

Notes angexed to and forming part of the Financial Statements for the vear ended 31 Magch 2010
Backgrotinil

(a}

(b)

(¢}

(i3]

Gateway Rail Freight Limited (the 'Company’} is engaged in providing inter~modal logistics services. It provides container logistics solution between
major Indian ports and Inland Cortainer Depots {ICD) by providing vail services for Expent, Import and Domestic containerised cargo. integrated with
roadd transportation. trawsit and bonded warehonsing, refrigerated container facilities and other value added services. The Company operates Trom its
four owned ICD's at Garli Harsaru (Gurgaon), Sanehwal (Ludhiana), Asaoti (Faridabad) and Viramgham (Ahmedabad} and a private freight terminal
at Navi Mumbai under agreement. The Company owns and operates through its rakes and a fleet of trailers.

The financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a regolution of the divectors on 13 May 2019,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:
This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adoepted in the preparation of these financial statements. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of Preparation:

(i) Compliance With Ind AS

The finrancial statements of the Company have heen prepared as a separate set of financial statement in aceordance with Indian Accounting Standaeds
(End AS} notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rudes, 2o15. (as amended from time to time).

(i1} Historical Cost Convention

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, Except for the following:
-~ Certain financial assets and labilities that is measured at fair vakue,

-- Define benefit plan-plan assets measured at fair value; and

(iit) Current and non-current classification

The Company presents assets and Habilities in the balance sheet based on current/ noo-current classificabion.

An asset is treated as current when it is:

a. Expected to be realised or intendedd to be sold or consumed in normal operating cvcle

b, Held primartly for the purpose of trading.

¢. Expected to be realised within twelve months after the repocting period, or

d. Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a linbility for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A lizbility is current when:

a. Bt is expected to be settled in novmal operating cycke

b. It is held primarily for the purpese of trading

. It is due to be settled within bwelve months after the reporting peried, or

. There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at east twelve months after the reporting period

The Company classifies all other Habilities as rop-current. +
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as nor-current assets and liabifities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has
identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

Investment in Joint Venture

Investinent 1o Joint Venture are recognised at cost as per Ind A8 27 in these separate financial statements.

Segment Reporting:

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reportivg provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker ("CODM™) of the
company.

The CODM, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, las been identified as the Managing
Directoy of the company. The company has wlentified one reportable segment "Rail Logistics Business™ i.e. based on the information reviewed by
CODM. Refer note 30 for segment information presented,

Foreign currency translation:

{i} Functional and presentation currency
Ftems included in the financiad statements are measured using the currency of the primary ecoromic ervironment in which the entity operates ('the
functional currency’). The financeial staterents are presented in fndian Rupee (INR), which is the Company's furctional and preseatation currency.

(ii} Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated luto functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transactions. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the setfement of such transactions and from the transtation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are generaliv recognised in Statement of profit and loss.

Foreign exchange differences regarded as an adjustinent to borrowing costs are presented in the statement of profit and loss, within finance cost. Alt
other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented ir the Statement of profit and loss on a net basis.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in a foreign eurrency and measured at historical cost are translated at the exchange rate prevalent at
the date of transaction.




GATEWAY RALL FREIGHT LIMITED
Netes apnexed to and forming part of the Financial Statements for the vear ended 33 March 2019

(e}

Non-monetary items that ave measured at fair vidoe in 2 foreign curreney are transhated nsing the exchiange rates at the date when the fair value was
deterriined. Franslation difference on assets and liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. For example,
translation differences on nen- monetary assets and liabidities such as equity instruments held at faie value through profit or loss ave recognised in
statersent of profit and loss as part of the fair value gain or loss and translation differences on non-monetary assets such as equity investments
classified as FVOCT are recognised in other comprehensive income.

All monetary assets and liabifities In foreign corrency are restated at the end of accounting period. With respect to long-term foreign currency
monetary items, the Company has adopted the following pelicy:

Long Term foreign currency monetary item taken upto 31 March 2016 on depreeiable assets:

+ Foreigr exchange difference on account of long term foreign carrency loan on a depreciable asset, are adjnsted in the eost of the deprecizble asset,
which would be depreciated over the balance life of the asset

Long Term foreign currency monetary item taken after ot April 2016 on depreciable assets:
- Foreign exchange diffevence on account of a depreciable assets, are included in the Protit and Loss.

A muonetary asset or liability is termed as a long-term foreign currency monetary item, H the asset or Lakility is expressed in a foreige currency and has
a term of 12 months or more at the date of origination of the asset or liabiity.

Revenue from contracts with custoners

Comgpany derives revenue from providing inter-modal logisties services between major Indian ports and Inlaad Container Depots (ICD) by providing
rail services for Export, Iimport and Domestic containerised cargo, integrated with road transportation, transit and bonded warehousing, refrigerated
contairer facilities and other value added services.

Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” provides a control-based revenne recognition model and provides a five step application
approach to be followed for revenue recognition

- Identify the contract(s) with a customer

- Hentify the performance obligations

- Detersnine the trarsaction price

- Allocate the transaction price 1o the performance obligations

- Recognise revenue when or as an entity satisfies performance obligation

Reventie from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the services are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those services, The Company has generally concluded that it is the prineipal
in its revenue arrangements, except for the agency services, because it typically contrels the services before transferring them to the customer.

Revenue exchudes amounts collected on behalf of third parties

Reundering of services:

(i) Income from Rail transpartation is recognised on the basis of actual journey completed as at vear end,

(i1} Ineome from Read transportation is recognised on propottionate completion of the movement ard dedivery of goods to the party/ designated place.
{iti) Income from Container handling, storage and transportation are recognised on proportionate compietion of the movement and delivery of goods
to the party/designated place.

{iv) Income from Ground Reat is recognised for the period the container is lying in the Coutainer Freight Station. However, in case of long standing
containers, the income from Ground Rent is not avernied for a period beyond 60 days as on the basis of past history the collectability is not reasonably
assured.

(v} Income from anction is recognised when the company atcticns losg-standing cargo that las aot beew cleared by customer. Revenue and expenses
for Auction are recognised when auction is completed after obtaining necessacy approvals from appropriate authorities, Auction sades include recovery
of the cost incurred in comducting auctions, custom duties en long-standing carge and acerved grouud rent and bandling charges relabing to long-
standing cargo. Surplus, out of auctions, if any, after meeting all expenses and the actual ground reat, is credited to a separate account "Auction
Surplus” and is shown under the head 'Other Current Liabilities’. Unclaimed Auction Surplus, if any, in excess of period specified under the Limitations
Act s writtew back as Tocome' in the fellowing financial vear.

Variable consideration

If the consideration in a contract inchudes @ variable amount. estimates the amount of consideration to which it wili be entitled in exchange for
transferring the service to the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a
significant revenne reversal in the amonnt of cumulative revenue recognised will not accar when the associated uncertainty with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved, The Company recognizes changes in the estimated amount of variable consideration in the period in which the
change ceeurs. Some contracts for the sale of service provide customers with volume rebates and pricing ingentives, which give rise to variable
consideration.

The Company provides retrospective volune rebates and pricing incentives to certain customers once the quantity of products purchased during the
periad exceeds a threshold specified in the contract. Rebates are offset against amounts payable by the customer. To estimate the variable
consideration for the expected future rebates. the Company applies the most likely amonnt method for contracts with a singie-volume threshold and
the expected valoe method for coutracts with mozre than one volune threshold. The selected methad that best predicts the amount of variable
consideration is primarily driven by the number of volume thresholds contained in the contract. The Company then applies the requirements on
constririning esthnates of variable constleration and recognises a refund liability for the expected future rebates.




GATEWAY RAIL FREIGHT LIMITED
Notes annexed to and forming part of the Financial Statements for the vear ended 21 Mar

Contract balances

Trade receivables

A receivable represents the Company’s vight to an amount of consideration that is unconditional {i.e., only the passage of time is required before
payment of the consideration is cue). Refer to accounting policies of financial assets in section financial instruments — initial recognition and
subseguent measurement.

Contreact Habilities

A contract Hability is the obligation to transfer services to a customer for which the Company has received consideration {or an mnoung of
consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers services to the customer, a contract lability is
recognised when the payment is made or the pavinent is due (whichever is emlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company
performs under the contract

Cost to obtain a contract

The Company pays sales commission to its selling agents for each contract that they obtain for the Company. The Company has elected to apply the
optional practical expedient for costs to obtain a contract which allows the Company to immediately expense sales commissions {inctuded in
advertisement andd sales promotion expense under other axpenses) because the amortization period of the asset that the Company otherwise would
have used is one vear or less.

Costs to fulfil a contract i.e, freight, insurance and other selling expenses ave recognized as an expense in the peviod in which related revenue i
recognised.

Critical judgements

The Company’s contracts with customers include promises to transfer service to the customers. Judgement is required to determine the transaction
price for the contract. The transaction price coukl be either a fixed amount of customer eonsideration or varisble consideration with elements such as
schemes, incentives, cash discounts, ete. The estimated amownt of vaviable consideration is adjusted in the transaction price only to the extent that it
is highly probable that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not oceur and is reassessed at the end of each
reporting period.

Estimates of rebates and discounts ave sensitive to changes in circumstances and the Company’s past experience regarding returns and rebate
entitletnents may not be representative of custorners” actieal returns and rebate entitlements in the future.

Costs to obtain a contract ave generally expensed as incurred, The assessment of this criteria requires the application of judgement, in particubar when
considering if costs generate or enhance resources to be used to satisfv future performance obligations and whether costs are expected to be recovered.

{f} Other revenue streams

Export Benefits

Sxport Entitlements in the form of Service Exports from Indin Scheme (SEIS) and other schemes are recogaized in the statement of profit and loss when
the right to receive credit as per the terms of the scheme is established in respect of exports made and when there is no signiticant uneertaingy regarding
the ultimate collection of the relevant export proceeds.

Dividend
Revenue is recognised when the Company's right to receive the payment is established, which is generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

Interest Income

' For all debt instruments measurved either st amortisad cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income, interest income is recorded wsing the
effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly diseounts the estimated future cash paviments or receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When
caleulating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the conteactual terms of the financial instrument
(for example, prepaviment, extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expected crechit losses. Interest income is included in finance
ineome in the statement of profit and loss.




GATEWAY RAIL FREIGHT LIMITED
Notes annexed to and forming part of the Fipancial Statements for the vear ended 31 March 2010

(£}

(h}

(i)

Income Tax:
The income tax expense o credit for the period is the tax payable on the enzrent period's taxable income based on the applicable income tax rate
adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities atiributable to temporary differences and to unused tax fosses.

Current income tax

The eurrent income tax charge is cafeutated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or sebstantively enacted at the end of the reporting peviod where the
company operates and generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates position taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

Deferred tax

"Deferved income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets snd labilities and
their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred income tax is detenmnined using tax rates {and laws) that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax Liability is settled.

Defarred tax nssets are recognised for all deductible temposary differences and vensed tax fosses only if it is probable that fulure txable amounts will
e available to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax assets are not recognised for temporary differences between the earrving amount and tax bases of investments in interest in joint veature
where it is not probable that the differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will not be avaitable against which the temporary
differences can he utilised.

Deferred tox assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable tight to offset current tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred
tax balunces relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax lizbilities are offset where the entity Las a legally enforceable right to
offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss. except to the extent that it relates to items recogrised in other comprehensive income or
directly in egnity, Iy this case, the ta is also reeognised in other comprebensive incoms ordirectly in equity, respectivedy,

Minimum alternate tax (MAT)

“Minimn alternate tax (MAT) paid in & vear is tharged to the stitement of profit aad logs as current tax for the year. The deferred tax asset is
recognised for MAT ecredit available only to the extent that it is probable that the concerned company witl pay normal income tax during the specified
period, be., the period for which MAT credit is aliowed to be carsied forward. In the vear in whicl the company recognizes MAT credit 25 an asset, it is
created by way of credit to the statement of profit and loss and shown as part of deferred tax asset. The company reviews the “MAT credit entitlement”
asset at each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent that it is no longer probable that it will pay normal tax during the specified period.”

Leases:

Alease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. A lease that transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership to the Group is classified as a finance lease. Leases in whiel a siguificant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not
transferred to the Company as lessee are classifted as operating teases.

As a lessee

Payment made under operating lease (nat of any incentive received from the lessor) ave charged o profit or loss on a straight loe basis over the peried
of the lease unless the payments are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor's expected inflationary
rost increase.

As a lessor

Lease income from operating leases where the Company is a lessor is recognised in income on a straight - line basis over the lease term unless the
receipts are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate tor the expected inflationary cost increases.

Impairment of assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life ave not subject to amortisation and are tested for impairment, or more frequently it events or
chitnges i circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carryving amount may not he recoverable. An impaicment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrving amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of
assessing tmpairment, assets are groupaed at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiabie cash inflows which are largely independent of
the cash inflows from other assets o1 groups of assets {eash-generating units}. Non-tinancial assets other than goodwill that suffered an inpairment
are reviewed for possible reversal of the iepatrment at the ead of each reporting period.




GATEWAY RAIL FREIGHT LIMITED

Notes annexed to and forming part of the Finaneial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
(i} Cash and Cash equivalents.

k)

O

For the purpose of presentation in the statemsent of cash flows, cash and cash equivadents inchides cash on hand, demand deposits with banks, other
short-term highly luid investments with original maturities of theee mouths or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an nsignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowing in Short term borrowings on
carrent liahilities in the balance sheet.

Trade Receivable
Trade Receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less provision
for impairment.

Investments and other financial assets

{i) Classification
The Company classifies financial assets in the fellowing measurement categories,
-- tlose to be measured subsenuently at fair valua (either through other comprehensive income, or through profit and loss and

- those measured at amortised cost.
The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the tinancial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

For the assets measnred at fair value, gain and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income, For investment in debt
instrument, this wiil depend on the busiress wodel in which the investment is held.

(i) Measuretment

At initizl recognition, the company measures a financial agsets at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial assets not at fair value through profis or
inss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition to the financial assets. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value
threugh profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss,

All assets and Habilities for which fair value is measured or discloged i the Ananeial statements are categorised within the v vatue hierarchy,
described as follows, based ou the lowest fevel input that is significant to the fair value measurement as 2 whole:

Level t — Quoted {unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or Hiabilities
Level 2 — Vatuation technicues for which the lowest level input that is significant ta the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable
Level 3 — Vauation teehniques for which the towest level input that is significant to the fair valae measurement is unohservable

For assats and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transters have occurred
between levels in the hierarchy by re-as: ny, categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of each repocting period.

Debt [astruments
Sihsequent measurement of debt iestruments depends on the company’s business madel for macaging the assets and cash flows characteristic. There
are theee measusement categories into which the company classifies its debt instruments.

1. Amortised Cost: Assets that are Tield fov the collection of eontractual cash Qows where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal
and interest are measurad at amortised cost. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at amortised cost and is not part of o
hedging relationship is recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest income from these financial assets is inclnded
in fitance income using the effective interest rate method.

Amortised cost is calenlated by taking into account any discount or preminm o acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The
EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss, The losses arising from impairmenst are recognised in the profit or loss.

2. Fair value through other comprehensive Inceme {FVOCI}): Assets that are held for the collection of contractual casl flows and for selling
the financial assets, where the assets cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at fair value through other
comprehensive mcome (FVOCD, Movements in the carrving senount are taken through OCH except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses,
interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognrised in profit and loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the
cuenlative gain or loss previeusly recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognised in other gains/ (losses), Interest income
from these financial assets is included in other income nsing the effective isterest rate method.

3. Fair Value through profit or loss: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FYQCT are measured as fair value through profit or
toss. A gain or loss en a debt investment that is subsequently measured at fair value through peofit or loss and is not part of hedging relationship is
recognised in profit or loss and presented aet in the statement of profit and loss within other gains/(losses) in the period in which it arises, Dividend
income from these Nnancial assets s included in other income.
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Notes annexed to and forming part.of the Finangial Statements for the year ended 31 Masch 2019

{m)

(iit) Empairment of financial assets

‘Fhe Cempany applies the expected credit loss model for recogrising impairment loss on financial assets measured at amortised cost, trade receivables
and other contractual rights to receive cash or other firancial assets. The Company measures the ECL associated with its assets based on historical
trend, ndustey practices and the business environment i which the estity operates or any other appropriate basis. The impaiement methodology
applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables only, the company applies the simpiified approach permitted by Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, which reguires expected
lifetime losses to be recognised frem initial recognition of the receivables.

For recognition of impairment loss ou other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether there has been a significant
inerense in the credit risk since initial recognition. If eredit risk has act increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss.
However, if credit risk has increased stignificantly, ifetime ECL is used. Tf, in a subsecuent period, credit quality of the instrament Improves such that
there is no longer a sigrificant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recoguising impaicnsent loss allowance based
on ez-month ECE.

Lifetime ECL are the expacted credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a finascial instrument. The t2-month
ECL is a portien of the lifetime £CL which results from defanlt events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

(iv) De-recognition of financinl assets

A financial asset is derecoghised ondy when

«« The company has transferred the right to receive cash flows from the financial assets, ar

-- Retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial assets, but assunes a contractual obfigation to pay cash flows to one or more
recipients,

When the entity has transferred an asset, the company evaluates whether it has transfecred substantiadly all risks and rewards of ownership of the
financiad asset. In such cases, the financial asset is derecognised. Where the entity has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards af ownership

of the financial asset, the financial agset is not derecognised.

Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially alt risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the
firancial asset is derecognised if the Company has not retained control of the Anancial asset. Where the Company retains control of the financial asset,
the asset is continued to be recognisad to the extent of continuing involvement in the financial asset.

{v) Income recognition
Interest: Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into acceunt the amouat cutstanding and effective interest rate,

Dividends: Dividends are recognised when the right to receive payiment is established.

Financial Liabilities

(i) Classification

The Company classifies financial assets in the following measurement categories,

-- those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive incene, ot through peofit and loss aud

-- those measured at amostised cost,

{ii) Measurement

1. Financiad liabilities at amorkised cost+ Financial labilites ot amartised cost represented by borrowings, trade and other pavables are initially
recognized at fair valve, and subsequently carried at amertized cost. Amortised cost is crleulated by taking into account any diseonnt o1 premium on
acquisition and fees or costs thak are an integrat past of the EIR, The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and Joss.

2. Financial Liabilities at fair value through profit and loss- Fiaancial Hiabilities at fair valne through profit and logs are measured at fair value with ail
changes tecognized in the statement of profit and loss.




GATEWAY RAIL FREIGHT EIMITED
Notes anpexed to and forming part of the Financinl Statements for the vear ended 31 March 2019

(n)

(0}

(1ii) Reclassification of financiai linbilities
The Company determices classification of financial assets and Liabilities on initiai recognition. Alter initial recognition, no reclassification is made for
financial assets which are equity instruments and financial Hizbilities.

The following table shows various reclassification and how they are acconuted for:

Original classification Revized Accounting treatment
classification

Fair value is measured at reclossification date. Difference bebwaen previeus
Amortised cost FVTPL amortized cost and fair vaine is recognised in P&L.

Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new gross carrying amount.
FVTPL Amortised Cost EIR is calenlated based on the new gross carrying amonut.

sification date, Difference hetween previous
o change in EIR due to

Fair vadue is measured at recls
Amortised cost FVTOCE amortised cost and fair vahue is recognised in OCT
reclassification.

Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new amortised cost carrying
anount. However, camulative gain ov Ioss in QCE is adjusted against faic
FVTOCI Amoctised cost vahue, Consequently, the asset is measured as if it had always been
measured at amortised cost.

Fair value at rectassification date hecomes its new carrying amount. No

FVTPL FVTOC other adjustment is reqguirad,
Assets continue to be measured at fair value. Cumulative gain or loss
FVTOCI FVTPL previously recognized in OCI s reclassified to P&L at the reclassifieation

date.

Offsetting finaneial instruments

Financinl assets and liabiities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a legally enforceable right to oifset the
recogaised amounts and there is an intention te settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settie the liability simultaneously. The tegally enforceable
right must not be contingeat on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or
bankruptey of the company or the counterpagty.

Property, Plant and equipment
Freehold land is cacried at historieal cost. Alf other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation, Historival
cost inclodes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subseguent cosis are inchnded in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, ondy when it is probable that future
eeonomic henefits associnted with the item will How to the company and cost ean be measured reliably. The carsying amount of any component
accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced, Al other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting
period in which they are incureed.

Capital work in progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any.

Depreciation methods, estimated usetul lives and residual value

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost, net of their residual values, over their estimated useful lives, or, in case

of certain assets, the remaining estimated useful hife is as follows:

- Reach Stackers and forklifts {included in Other Equipment's) are depreciated over a period of ten years, based on the technical evaiuation;

- Containers and Reefer Power Packs (inchuled in Rodling Stocks- Containers and Reefer Power Packs) are depreciated over a period of te vears,
based on the technical evaluation;

- Leagehold Improvements are amortised over non-cancellable lease period; and

~ Assets individually costing less than Rs. 5,000 are fully depreciated in the vear of acquisition/ construction.

The usefitl lives have been determined based on techuical evaluation done by the management which are lower than those speeified by schedule I to

the companies Act 2013, in order to reflect the actual usage of the assets. Company carries Nil residual value for ali assets. The ts wseful lives are

reviewed, and adjusted if apprepriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset's careying ameunt is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater that its estimated
recoverable amount.

Gains and losses an disposal are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in profit or loss within other
gains/(losses).
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Notes annexed to.and foxming part of the Einancial Statements. for the year ended 31 March zo19
(p)  Intangible Assets

(ay

()

(s)

)

(u)

Intangibie assets purchased are measured at cost or fair value as of the date of acquisition, as applicable less accwmulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment, i€ any,

Intangibie assets of company consist of Rail Licence Fees, PFT Licence Fees, Techajcal Know-How and Computer Software.

The companry amortises Intangible Assets with a [inite useful life using the straight-tine metlod over the following periods:

- Rail License fees paid towards coneession agreement, is being ameortised over a period of agreement {i.e. 20 years) from the date of commencement
of comunercial operations;

« Private Freight Terminal (PFT) Licence fees paid to Railway Administration is amortised over the period of contract (i.e. 30 years).

- "Technical Know-Hew, is amortised over a period of agreement {i.e. 5 years) from the date of lechnology being put to use or over balance period of
agreement from the date of commencement of the commercial operations, whichever is later;

- Computer Seftware is amortised under straight line method over a period of five years.

Trade and other Payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the company prier to the end of financial year which are unpaid. The amounts
are unsecured. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is rot due within 12 months after the reporting period.
They are recoguised initially at fair value and sehseqrently measured at amortised cost using effective interest meathod.

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction cost ineurred, Borrowings are subhsequently measured at amertised cost. Any
difference between the proceeds (et of transaction cost) and redemption anount is recognised in profit or loss over the pertod of the borrowings using
the effective interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction vosts of the loan o the extent that it is
probable that some or all of the facility wilt be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw down oceurs. To the extent there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or alt of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as 2 prepayment for liquidity services and
amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates,

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged. cancelled or expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of & finaocial Bability that bag been extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, inchuding
any non-cash assets transferced or tabilities assumed, is recognised in statement of profit and loss,

Borrowings are clagsified as current liabilities unless the company has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the Hability for at least t2 moaths
after the reporting period. Where there 15 a breach of a material provision of a long-term arrangement on oc before the end of the reporting period
with the effect that the liability becomes puyvable on demand oa the reporting date, the entity does not chassify the Lability ag current, if the lender
agreed, after the reporting period and before the approval of the financial statements for issue, not to demand payment as a consequence of the breach,

Barrowing Cost:

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition. construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalised
during the perind of ime that is required to compielz and prepare the assets for its intended use or sale. Quatifying assets are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended nse or sale.

Investment income eazned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Other bosrowing costs are expensed in the period in whicl they are incurred.

Provisions:
Provisions are recognised when the company has a present legal or constructive abligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an outfiow of
resources will be required to settte the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated, Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelikomd that an outflow will be required in settlziment is determined by considering the ¢l of
obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of
obligations may be small,

Provigion are measured at the present vatue of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required 1o settle the present obligation at the end of
the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre -tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time vaiue
of money and the risk specific to the liabiity. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

Employee Benefits:

(i} Short term obligation

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including zon monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period
in which the employee render the refated servics are recognised in profit and loss in respect of employees service up to the end of repertiog perivd and
are measured at the amount expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligation in
the balance sheet.




GATEWAY RAIL FREIGHT LIMITED
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)

(w)

{x)

(ii) Other long term employee benefit obligations

The liabilities for the earned feave and sick leave are not expected to be settled wholly within the 12 months after the end of the period in which the
employess render the related service. They are therefore measured as the present value of expected future pavment to be made in respect of services
provided by emplovees up to end of the reporting period using projected unit eradit method (PUC method). The henefits are discounted using the
market yields at the end of the reporting period that have approximating to the terms of the related obligation.

Remeasurements as a result of experience adjustment and changes in actuarial assemgtions are recognised in profit or loss.

(iii) Post employvment obligation

The company operates the following post-employiment schemes:
Defined benefit plans such as gratuity; and
Defined contribution plan such as provideat fund.

Gratuity Obligations
The liability recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plan is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end
of the reporting period. The defined benefit obligation is calenlated annually by actuaries using projected wndt eredit method.

The present value of the defined bensfit obligation denominated in INR is determined by discounting the estimated futare cash outBows by reference
to market vields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligations.

The net interest cost is caleutated by appiving the discount rate to the balance of defined benefit obligations, This cost is included in employee benefit
expenses in the statement of profit or loss |

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and chaages in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the period in which they
oceur, directly in other comprehensive income. They are incleded in retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet.

Changes in the present value of the defined henefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are recognised immediately in profit or
loss as past service cost.

Defined Contribution Plans

The company pays provident fund contribntion to publicly admiaistered provident funds as per tocal regulation. The company has no farther pavment
obligations once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are accounted for as defined contribution plans and the contribution are
recogiised as employee benefit expense when they are due.

(iv) Bonus Plan
The company recognises a hability and an expenses for bonus. The company recognise a provisicn where contractualiy obliged or where there is a past
practize that has created a constructive obligation.

Contributed equity
Equity shares are classified as eguity
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceads.

Compound Financial Instrument

Compowsd financial instrument issued by the Company comprises of compulsorily redeemable noa-convertible preference shares. Compoud
tizancial instruments ace spht into separate equity and lability eomponents. The Mabitity component of a compound fisancial tnstrument is initintly
recognised at the fair value of a similar liabitity that does not have discretionary dividerd feature/ off market interest rate. Subsequent to initial
recognition, the liability component of a compound financial instrument is measured at amnetised cost nsing the effective interest method. The equity
component i initially recognised at the difference between the fair value of the compound finzncial instrument as a whole and the fair value of the
Hability component. This is recoguised and included in shareholders” equity, net of income tax effects, and not subseqguently re-measured. Ay dicectly
attributable transaction costs are aflocated to the liabitity and equity components in proportion to their initial carrving amounts.

Interest related to the liability component of compound instrument is recognised in profit or loss {unless it qualifies for inclusion in the cost of an
usset).

Earnings per Share:

i} Basic earnings per share

Basic earning per share is calculated by dividing:

‘Fhe Net profit or loss attributable to the owner of the Company by the weighted average number of equity share outstanding during the financial year,
adjusted for bous elements in equity shares.

(ii) Diluted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figure used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take into aceount;

1} the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity shares, and

2) the weighted average unmber of additional squity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity
shares,
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Notes anneyed to and forming part of the Financial Statements for the vear ended 21 March 2049
(¥} Government grants:

(2

{an}

{ab)

{ac)

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and afl attached conditions will be complied
with., When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the relatzd costs, for which it is
intended to compensate, are expensed. When the grant refates to an asset, it iy recognised as income in equal amounts over the expected useful Bife of
the related asset

When the Coingrany receives grants of con-monetary assets, the asset and the grant are recorded at fair value amounts and released to profit or loss
over the expected useful life in a pattern of consumption of the benefit of the uaderlying asset.

Exceptional [tems
When items of income and expense within profit or loss from ondinary activities are of such size, nature or incidence that their disclosure is relevant to
explain the performance of the Company for the year, the aature and amount of sucl items is disclosed separately as Exceptional items.

Contingent Linbilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the ccecurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more uncertain future events bevond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an
outflow of resources will be reguited to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that
cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent linbility but discloses s existence in the
financial statements.

Rounding of amounts
All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs as per the reguirement of Schedule I, unless
otherwise stated.

New and amended standards

The Company applied Ind A8 115 for the first tiee. The nature aad effect of the changes a5 a result of adoption of these new accounting standards are
described below. Several other amendments and interpretations apply for the first time in March 2019, but do not have an impact on the financial
statements of the Company. The Company has not enrdy adopted any standards or amendments that have been issuad bat are not yet effective.

Ind AS 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
Ind AS 115 was issued on 28 March 2018 and supersedes Ind AS 1t Construction Contracts and Ind AS 8 Revenue and it applies, with limited:
exceptions. to all revenue arising fronms contracts with its customers. Ind AS 115 establishes n five-step model io acconnt for revenne arising from
coutracts with customers and requires that revenue be recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer,

Ind AS 115 requires entities 1o exercise Judgement, taking into consideration all of the relevant facts and circumstances when applying each step of the
maodel to contracts with their customers, The standard also specifies the rccounting for the incremeantal costs of obtaining a contract and the costs
directly related to fuifilling 2 coutract. i addition, the standard reguires extensive disclosures,

The Company adopted Ind AS 115 using the modified retrospective method of adoption. The change did not have a matevial impact on the financial
staterments of the Company.

Amendment to Ind AS 20 government grant related to non-monetary asset

The amendment clarifizs that where the government grant related to asset. including non-monetary grant at fair value, shall be pregented in balunce
sheel either by setting up the grant as deferred mcome or by deducting the grant in arriving at the carrying amount of the asset. Prior to the
amendment, fud AS 20 did not allow the option to present asset retated grant by deducting the grant fram the carrying amount of the asset. Thess
amendments do not have any impact on the financial statements as the Company continues to present graunt relating to asset by setting up the grant as
deferyed income.

Amendment to Ind AS 38 Intangible asset acquired free of charge

The amendment clarifies that in some cases, an intangibie asset may be acquired free of charge, or for nominal consideration, by way of a government
grant. Ie accordance with Ind AS 20 Accounting for Governinent Grants and Disclosure of Govermment Assistance, an entity may choose to recognise
both the intangible asset and the grant initially at fair value, If an entity chooses not to recognise the asset initially at fair vaiue, the entity recognises
the asset initially at a acminal amonat phas any expenditnre that is diveetly attributakle to preparing the asset for its intended ese. The amendment
also clarifies that revaluation model can be applied for asset which is received as government grant and measured at nominal value, These
amendments ¢o not have any impact on the Company’s financial statements.

Appendix B to Ind AS 21 Foreign Curreney Transactions and Advance Considerations

The appendix clarifies that, in determining the spot exchange rate to use on initial recogaition of the relnted asset, expense or ieoms (o part of i) on
the de-recognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary lability refating to advance consideration, the date of the transaction is the date on which
an entity igitially recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the advance censideration. i there are maltiple payments
or receipts in advance, then the entity must determine the date of the transactions for each payment or receipt of advance consideration, This
Interpretation does not have any impact on the Compauy’s financial statements.

Amendments to Ind AS g0 Transfers of Investment Property

The amendivents clavify when an entity should traosfer property, including property under constmction or development into, or put of investment
property. The amendments state that @ change i use ocenrs when the property meets, or ceases (o meet, the definition of investment property and
thers is evidence of the change in wse. A mera change in management’s intentions for the use of a propercty doss not provide evidence of a change n
use. These amendments do not have any impact on the Company’s financial statements.
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Amendments to Ind AS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses

The amendments clarify that an entity needs ta consider whether tax law testricts the sources of tuable profits agaiast which it may make deductions
on the reversal of that deductible temporary difference. Furthermore, the amendments provide guidance on how an entity should determine future
taxable profits and explain the circumstances in which taxable profit may inclnde the recovery of some assets for more than their carrying amount.

Eutities are sequired to apply the amaudments retrospectively. However, on initial application of the amendments, the change in the ppening egnity of
the earliest comparative period may be vecognised in opening retained earnings (or in another component of equity, as appropriate), without
allocating the change between opening retained earnings and other components of equity. Entities applying this vetief must disclose that fact.

These amendments do not have any impact on the Company as the Company has no deductible temporary differences or assets that are in the scdpe of
the amendments.

The Preparation of financial statements require the uge of accounting estimates which, by definition, will seldom equal the actual results, Management
also needs to exercise judgement in applying the company’s accounting policies.

This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity, and of items which are more likely to be
ataterially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to be different that those originally assessed. Detailed information about each of
these estimates aud judgements is included in relevant notes together with information about the basis of calenlation for each affected line item in the
financial statements.

The areas involving critical estimates or judgements are:
-- Estimation of Provisions & Contingent Liabilities.

The Company exercises judgement i measuring and recognising provisions and the exposures to contingent labilities which is related to pending
litigation ot other outstanding claizos. Judgement is necessary in assessing the likelihood that a pending ctaim will suceeed, or a Hability wilt arise, and
to guantify the possible range of the fnancial settlement. Beeause of the inherent uncertainty in this evaluation process, actual hability may be
different from the originally estimated as provision. (Refer Note 31).

-- Estimated usetul life of intangible assets

The charge it respect of periodic depreciation is derived after determining an estimate of an asset’s expected useful life and the expected residual value
at the end of its life, The useful lives and residual values of Company’s assets are determined by management at the time the asset is acqaired and
veviewead periodicaily, including at each financial year end. The lives are based on historical experience with sisilar assets ag well as anticipation of
future events, which may impact their life, such as changes in technology. For the relative size of the Company’s intangible assets {Refer Notes 4),

-- Estimation of defined benefit obligation

The present value of the defined benefit obligations depends on a number of factors that are determined 6n an actuarial basis using a number of
assumptions, The asswmptions used in determining the vet cost (income} for post employments plans include the discount rate. Any changes in these
assumptions will impact the carrying amount of such obligations.

The Company determines the appropriate discount rate at the end of each vear. This is the interest rate that should be used to determine the present
value of estimmated future cash outflows expected to be required to settls the defined benefit obligations. In determining tie appropriate discount rate,
the Company considers the interest rates of government bonds of maturity approximating the terms of the related plan liability, Refer vote 13 for the
details of the assumptions used in estimating the defined berefit obligation.

- Impairment of trade receivables

Trade receivables are typically unsecured and are derived from revenue earned from custemers. Credit risk has been managed by the Company
through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which the Company grants
creddit terms in the normal course of business. On account of adoption of Ind AS 109, the company uses expected ¢redit loss model to assess the
inzpairment loss or gain, The Company uses a provision matrix and forward-locking nformation and an assessment of the credit visk over the expected
life of the financial asset to compute the expected credit toss allowance for trade receivables. Refer note 28,

- Estimated faiv value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instrunents that are not traded in an active market is determiced vsing valuation techoigues. The Management nses its
judgement to select a variety of methods and make assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions existing at the end of each reposting
period. For details of the key assumptions used and the impact of changes to these assumptions see Note 27,

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other factors, inchuling expectations of future events
that may have a financial impact on the company and that are believed to be reasonable under the cireumstances.
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GATEWAY RAIL FREIGHT LIMITED

Notes annexed to and forming part of the §

3{(a2) CAPITALWORK-IN-PROGRESS

nancial Statements for the vear ended 31 Mareh 2019

Particulars ‘Fotal
Cost or Valuation
A1 April 2oy 665.68
Additions 599248
Capitalisation 5.515.48
At March 2018 1,141,068
At 1 April 2018 1,141.68
Additions LR18.90
Capitalisation z,800.9
At 31 March zoig 159-59
At 31 March 2018 1,141,68
At 31 March 2019 150.59

Capital work-in-progress as at 3t March 2019 maindy comprises rakes upgradation of Rs. 148.53 lakhs.

4 OTHER INTANGIBEE ASSETS

s PIY Licence Computer
Rail License Fees Fees Software
iculars Note (& tal
Particulars [Rei‘:;m::f]t 1S [Refer Note {(b) | [Refer Note {c} Tota
below] below]

Cost
At April 2017 3,041.67 200.00 13.46 1,255.13
Additions during the vear - 10¢.00 - LOG.00
At 31 March 2018 3.041.67 300.00 13.46 3.355-13
Cost
At1April 208 3.041.67 300.00 [3.46 3.355.13
Adeitions during the vear - - - -
At 31 March 2019 3.041.67 300.00 13.46 3.355.13
Amaortisation and inpairment
At 1 April 207 300,00 14.73 13.46 52819
Amortisation charge for thi year 250.00 10.00 - 260.00
At 3t Mavch 1§ 750.00 24.73 13.46 ~88.09
Amortisation and impairment
At 1 April 2018 ) 750.00 24.73 13.46 788.19
Amorbisabion charge for the vear 250,00 3.0 {0.00} 25G.04
At g Marcch 2019 1,000.00 34.72 13.46 t,048.18
Net book Value

At 31 Marcl: 2048 2,201.67 275,27 - 2.560.04

At 31 March 2019 2,041.67 263.28 - 2,306.95

Notes:

a) Rail License Fees aggregating Rs. 5,000 Lakhs (35-March-18: Rs. 5,060 Lakhs) paid to Railway Administration towards concession agreement is
amortised over the period of contract {t.e. 20 vears) from date of commencement of commercial operations (June 1. 2007} Badance nseful life of
Rail License Fees as at March 31, 2019 is 8 years and 2 moaths (31-March-£8: 9 years 2 months).

b} Private Freight Terminal (PFT) Licence fees aggregating Rs. 300 Lakhs (31-Marcl-18: Rs. 3e0 Lakhs) paid to Railway Administration is
amortised over the period of contract (i.e. 3oyears).
£) Computer sotbware consists of cost of ERP licences and development cost. Iseful Hife of compuler software is estimated to be 5 veiws, hased oa

techaical obsolence of such assets.




GATEWAY RAIL FREIGHT LIMITED
Notes auunexed to.and forming part of the Financial Statements fox the year ended ae darch 2010,

5  INYESTMENTIN JOINT YENEURE
Asak As at

31 darch 2019 3t March 2018
Rupees in Lakhs Rupees in Lakhs

Equity Investment in Joint Venture

Unegroted Equity Instruments (A8 cost)

50,057 Equity Shaves {(31-March-2018: 50,047 of Rs. 10 ench hold in

Container Gateway Limited, 5.10 5.1
Less hnpalnnent in the volue of investment 310 5.10

Aggregate amount of unguoted investment 5.10 5.50
Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investment 310 5.10

6 FINANCIAL ASSETS
6(a) INVESTMENITS

Investment in Muteal Fund at Fair value through Profit and Loss Account {Unguoted)
43.451.560 units {3-March-18: 32,166,730 waits) UTT Money Market Funid - Institutionad Plan
Direct Plan - Growth, NAYV Ry, 2,112.5538 (31-March-18: Rs. 1,049.0158)

Nil units (33-March-18: 130,608.502 vaits) Bareda Pioneer Treasury Advintage Fund - Plan B
Growth, XAV Rs. NaA (3-March-18: Rs. 2,067.7183)

Nil units (31-March-18: 3,367.421 uiits) Baroda Pioneer Liguid Fand - Pian B Growth, NAY Rs. NA
(21-March-:8: Rs. 1,998.0363)

Nil units (3i-March-18: 35.8t8. 144 units} Kotak Low Dueation fund - Direct Plan - Growth, NAV Rs.
NA C3-March-18: Ry, 2,189.46635)

705.68

- 2,700.61

B 131006

- 784.23

Nil units (32-March-18: 42412564 vnits) Kotak Floater Showt Fern: Frud Direct Growth, NAV Rs. w0
NA (z1-March-18: Rs. 2,830.3504) - 120891
Nil urits {52-March-18: 7,250,700 nnits} Aditya Bivk Sun Life Savings Fund - Growth -Direct Plan,
NAV Rs. NA (3-Mareh-18: Ry, 343.7106)

Nil units (3t-March-18: 503.338.040 units) Aditva Birla Sun Life Ligquid Fund - Growth -Direct Phn,
WAV Rs. MA (3-Mureli-i8: Ry, 279.24772)

- 44,92
- Ll

401400751 units {3-March-18: Nil noitsy Adityva Birka Sun Life Money danager Fond - Growth -

Bivect Plar, NAY Rs, 2507000 (31-March-18; Rs. Na} L0235 -

Nil units (35-March-18: 34,812,700 wunits} Relinnee Shoet Term Fund - Birect Plan - Growth Option
NAV Rs, NA (31-March-18: Ry, 2,617.2085)
631 uaits) Mahindea Liguid Fund - Growth -Direct Plan, NAV Rs. NaA

- CINE

Nil units (3-March-18: 3
{31-March-18: Rs. 1,124,365

- A01.860
Nil units (31-March-18: 16,874.703 voiis) LET Liguitl Fund - Growth -Divect Plan, NAV Rs. NA(31-
March-18: Rs. 2,381.4758)

104, 113.022 units {31-March-18: Nil units) ICICT Prudential Monay Market Fuad - Direct Plan
Growth, NaV Rs. 260. 1610 (31-March-18: Rs. NA)

- 4oL87

305.08 -

Aggregate amount of quoted investment and market value thereof 2,222,004 9,782.18
Aggregate amount of impairnzent in value of investment - -




GATEWAY RAIL FREIGHT LEMITED

Notes apnesed to.and fonming pant of he Finangiak Statements for the sear ended 31 March zeia

G(h)

6{c)

Gk

“Tradle receivables
Recerablos from refated parties
Less: [mplioment fur trade receivable”

‘fotal Receivables

Current Portion
Now-curvent portion

Break-up of security detaiks

Secured, considered goad

Unsgenred, considerad good

Trade Receivables which have significant inerease in Credit Risk
Less: linpairment for toude recshvable®

“Yotat Trade Receivables

‘Trade or other receivable is Rs. Nil from directors or other officers of the Company. Trads or other receivable is Rs, Ni

partner, a director or a member (31-March-18: Rs. Nil),
Uranels rece
* The prov

Balanees with Banks:-

- O Current aceounts

- Deposits witleoriginal matnrity periods less than 3 isenths
Chegques enhand

Cash on hand

Total Cash And Cash Equivalents

As at
3t March 2019
Rupees in Lakhs

540,26

05120

Dgd.o0

750800

7.598.00
95120
9316

7.5398.00

ted oredit loss method and other cases hased on wmanagement jadegement.

a33-27
2769
12,46

For the purpose of the statement of cash flews, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following:

Balapees with Banks:-

- O Carrent aceouinds

- Deposits with ociginal matarity peeiods less than 3 months
Cheenes on hand

Caxh on hand

Totat Cash And Cash Equivadents
Less:+ Bank overdeaft (ninte t4)
OTHER BANK DALANCES OTHER THAN (0 ABOVE

Eacmarkee balanees with banks:
- in unckiimed Dvidend Accounts

27.69
12,46

540.23

.86

. Ha

from firms of Privaze Companies in which any directorisa

Asat
31 March 2o 8
Rupees in Lakhs
829757

[b0.27

A 8730

TBT

TT34
00.60

~1

3

26,19

j— 5:409-49




GATEWAY RAUL FREFGHT REMEITED
Notes annexed to and feruzing part of the Finaneiad Statements for the vear eoded 21 March 2016

H{e)

0

ANAN

Seenrity deposits
Consitdered good
Congidered deubifnl

Less: Provision for donbtivl deposits

Bank deposits with arigimd matarity pesiod wore than 12 months

iees to Relted Party
ered good
red denbtful

Less: Provision for donbtiol advances

Acermed Ground Rent
-- Considered good
- Considered deubtful

Less: Provision for doubeful growl rest
Unbitled Revenus
= Considered gowd

-- Considered dusbtinl

Less: Provision for unbillad revenus

Interest Avertted but not due on Fixed Deposits with Banks

Adlvances recoverable incash
fnsurance clibm veceivable

LOANS
Lean to Costomers
-~ Eonsidered goul
- Considered donbtiul

Less: Allowances for doubtful Loans

Asat
41 March zotg

As at
31 March 2018
Current Non-current
35514

174

@00

L7

4
.00

174

4657

3351

Jt.0b

s

5507

76,04
Pre

3

2.8z

24.91
9547

32038
R g

2401

Fiod
1480
140,60

376.

3000

OO

Current Non-current
46.04 304.8E
- ALY
BLiREA] RititNH
- 2,013
RTXENY RUENT
Ayt A50.02
@20 -
15.86 -
138.494 -
10619 -
408.29 G037
50.00 -
30.00

30.00
501,00
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GATEWAY RALL FREIGHT LIMETED

] L {115 (303 £ 4
DEFERBED TAX ASSEES/ (LIABILITIES L (NED

Defeveed Tax Asseta:

Provision for Duubti [ebte and Advances
{nher ltems

-- Prowision for Gratuity & Leave Encashment
- Prowvision for Bonus

Minitzutrs Alternate Tax Credit Entitlsment
Totad

Deferred Tax Liability

the: Financial Stitements fov the year ended 30 Mash 2049

As b
1t dMarch 2019

Rupees in Lakhs
16346

3381
401

P

s at
at March 2018
Rupees in Lakhs

116,80

2434
4%}
G4303.00

Finimeial Assets at Fuir Valuation throvgh profit ok loss aceount T
Depreciation en Property, plant and equipment and intangible asxets 438107
Total 1.516.45 LIVETY
Net Deferved Tax Asset/ (Linbilities) {7H5.62}) Bat. 46
Movements in Deferred Tox Axsets/ (Liabilittes) [MNet]
- Minimum
. Property ,plant . Provision for Alternate Tax
Puarticulars . Intangible Assets Doubtfid Debts and ) Dther Eems Total
and equipment ) Credit
Advanees Entitlement

At 41 March 2018 (1.302.84) (78.23) 116,86 GO0y (186.34) {841.46}
Less: Chagged/ (Credited)
- to profit and foss (1703} 9.56 40,60 (79.54) 193,90
-ty pther comprehensive income - - - -
At 31 March 2019 (1,440.07) (68.67) 163,46 520.55 30.10 {785.62)
Preferved tux asets and deferred tax labilities have been offset as they refate 1o the sanwe governing taxation laws,
Capital Advances
Considerad Good 537450
Considered Doubtful 5251

o7
Luxs: Provision for Doubtint Advances S

337.96
Prepakd Expenses HERTA

INCOME TAX ASSEXS (NET)

Advance Income FTox (Net of Provision)

Acvances Recoverable in Kind or for Value to he Received
Consiclered Good
Consicered Doubtful

Less: Provision for Doubriul Advances

Balances with Govemment Anthorities
Prepaid Expenses

558.61

Q4770

PO

50743

307.33

4.6
210,43

'75!.2"!

THOGG

720.99

5161z

S5t

Hhan

85.50
FE{aT e §8

emm—— T
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GATEWAY RAIL FREIGHT LIMITED

Notes annexed to and forming part of the Financial Statements for the vear ended 31 March 2019

EQUITY SHARE CAPTTAL

Equity

Authorised Equity Share Capital:

Equity Shares having par value of Rs. 10 each
As at 1 April 2017

Tnerease during the vear

As at 31 Macch 2018

Increase during the vear

As at 31 March 2019

Equity Shares having par value of Rs. 25 each
Asat April 2017

Increase during the vear

As at 33 March 2018

Tuerease during the year

Asg ar 3r March 2019

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital;

Movement in Equity Share Capital

Equity Shares having par value of Rs. to each
As at 1 April zony

Increase during the year

As at 31 March 2018

Increase during the vear

As at 31 March zo19

Equity Shares having par value of Rs, 25 each
As at 1 April 2017

Increase during the year

As at 31 March 2018

increase daring the vear

As at 31 Mavch 2019

Total as at 31 March 2019

Tertns and rights attached to Tguity Shares

Number of Shares
in Lakhs

Rupees in Lakhs

4,027.00

4,027.00

413,250.00

$0,270.00

4.027.00

40,270.00

Q.001 0025
.00 0.025
0001 .025

Number of Shares
in Lakhs

Equity Share Capital
{par value)
Rs. in Lakhs

2,015.00

2,015.00

20,5000

20,E50.00

2,015.00

20,150.00

0.001 @025
0,00} 0.025
0.001 0,025

2.015.001

20,150.025

There are two class of Equity Shares issued by the Company having par value of Rs. 10 and Rs. 23 each. They entitle the hokler to participate in dividends, and to share in the
proceeds of winding up the Company in propertion to the mumber of and amouats paict on the shares held.

Every hokter of equity shares present ot the meeting in person or by proxy, is entitiecl to one vote, and upon a potl each share is entitled to sue vote.

Instruments Entirely Equity in Nature

Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares

Aunthorised Compidsory Convertible Preference Sharves:

Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares having par value of Rg. 24.65 each
Asat or April zoy7

[nerease during the vear

As at 31 March 2018

Increase during the vear

As at 31 March 2019

Number of Shares
in Lakhs

Rupees in Lakhs

1.200.00

1,200.60

29,580.00

26,580.00

1200.00

249,580.00




(1} Movement in Compulsory Cenvertible Preference Shares Capital of Rs.24.65 each

GATEWAY RAIL FREIGHT LIMETED

Notes annexed to.and forming part of the Financial Statements for the vear ended 3¢ Mareh 2019

Blackstone GPY Capital Partners (Mauritius) V-H Limited
Asat of April zoay

fucrease during the year

Asat 31 March 2018

Decrease during the vear

Asat 3x March 2019

Gateway Prstriparks Limited
As at ot April 2017
Encrease during the vear

As at 3t Mareh 2018
Encrease during the vear

As at 31 March 2019

No. of Shares in

Lakhs

Rupees in Lakhs

L,200.00

29,580.00

1,200.00
L2000

29,580.00
120, 580.00

1,200, 00

29.580.00

£,200.00

29,580.00

J200.00

z9,580.00

During the vear 120,000,000 CCP and 100 equity shares held by Blackstone GPV Capital Partners (Mauritius) V-H Limited (Blackstone) were aequired by GDL.

Consequently, GDL became the holding compaay with effect from March 29, 2019

(i) Shares of the company held by Holding Company (Joint venturer till 29 March 2019}

[4)13]

av)

11{c)

Equity Shares having par value of Rs. 10 each
Gateway Distripacks Limited

As at 31 March 2018

Inerease during the vear

As at 31 March zotg

Details of shareholders, holding more than 5% shares in the company

Eeguity Shares having par value of Rs. 10 each
Gateway Distriparks Limited
Computlsory Convertible Prefevence Shares of Rs. 24.65 each

Blackstone GPV Capital Partness (dMauritius) V-H Limited

Gateway Distriparks Limited

Aggregative number of shares issued for consideration other than cash
Ne Equity shares has been issued for consideration other than cash in the Iast 5 years,

No of Shares {Lakhs)
% Share holding

No of Shares {Lakhs}
% Share holding
No of Shares (Lakhs)
% Shase holding

2,01L.00
0.8

20,1000
5.98

2,011,908

20,114.08

As at
31 March 2019

2.012.00
90.85%

£200.00
100.00%

Reserve and surplus.

Particulars 3t March zoig 3iMarch 2018
Securities prewivm reseve 132.05 205
Retained Earnings 5.369.07 18,0012
Capital Redereption Reserve 11.500.00 LL300 00
Total 17,0012 20.6:46.57

{i) Securities premium reserve

Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Opening balance 132.09 £32.05
Increase/ (Decrease) during the vear - -
Closing balance $32.03 132.03

{ii) Retained Earnings

Particulars

3k March zotg

21 March 268

Opening balance

1800412

21,2009 33

Loss » Impact on adoption of Ind AS 113

24.16

Net Profit for the period

108475

&304 .80

Agount teansfer to Capital Redemption Reserve

(11,500.00)

h Dividends

19,603.71

Less : Dividend distribution tax #.0:41.53 -
Closing balance 5.369.07 18.014.12

Cash dividends deglared and paid :

Particulars

a1 March 2059

31 Maveh 2018

Intenim dividend for the vear ended on 32 March 2019 Rs. 1.20 per share (32 March
20i8: Rs. Nit per share) on Eguity Shave and Rs. 10.42 per share €31 March 208: Rs. Nil
per share) or: CCPS

14,922.00

Dividend distribution tax (DDT) on ahove

3,067.20

Interim dividand for the vear ended on a2 March 2019 R, 120 per share (31 March
2018; Re. Nit per share) on Equity Share and Rs. 10,42 per share {31 March 20t8: Rs. Nil
per shars) on CCPS

474170

Dividend distribution tax (DDT) on above

Y7467

(iii} Capital Redemption Reserve

Particulars

31 March zo19

3t Maveh 2048

Opening balance

Addition during the vear (Refer nate 3g)

11,50¢.00

11.500.00

Closing balance

W,500.00

14,500.00

Nature and purpose of other reserves
Securitics premhum reserve
Securities premium reserve is wsed to recozd the premium on issue of shares.

Capital Redemption Reserve (CRR)
CRR is cyeated out of profits on redemption of Zero Coupen Redesmable Preference Shaves

As at
3 March 2018

2,0481.00
99.80%

£200.00
L00.00%




GATEWAY RAIL FREIGHT LIMITED
Notes annexed to and forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 21 darch 2oz

12 NON-CURRENT BOBROWINGS

Asat Asat
31 March zo1g 31 Maorch 2018
Rupees in Eakhs Rupees in Lakhs
Term Loans
Erom Banks:
Rupes Lean [Refer Note (a} below] 1,570,190 1757653
Vehicle Loans
HDFC Vehicle Loan [Refer Note (b) helow} 289.72
Tolal Non-Current Borrowings 153:259.91 17,052.50
Less: Carrent snadurities of long term debt from bank A350.50 2,723.96
Less: Current materities of HDFC vehicke loan 94.30 8654
Non-Current Borrowings 11,815.11 15, t42.0
Nature of security and terms of repayment for secured borrowings
Nature of Security Forms of Repayment
a) Teruz Losn fromy BDFC Bank amonoting to Bs. 14.863.25 Lakhs (31- 1} The Termy Loan 1 frans HDFC Bank is repayabie tn 24 quarterly instalments within 8 vears with 2 yeprs
March-18 Ks. 1746192 Eakhs) is secured by first axelusive charge on all moriatorine from the date of each drawdowi.
the assets {fixed and current, present sl futare) of the Company and ‘Tern: Loan of Rs. 3,500.00 Lukhs taken on April 15, 2015 is repavable in instalments of Rs, 155.83 Lakhs
Corporate Guarantee by Gateway Distriparks Limited, the Holding starting from July 2017 with interest 6 Base mate + $0bps. w.ef 01 December, 2016, interest rate benchmark
Company, for Texm Lowny a2 s hewr tavised to MCLR + 25 hps, Interest for cnrvent venr is in the range of 8.35% - 8.95% p.a.

2} The Term Loan 2 from HDFC Bank is repavable in 24 Quarter]y instalments within § years with 2 yveuus
moratorium from the ficst drawdown.

) Term Loan of Rs. 1,000.00 Lakhs taken on December 22, 2014 is repavabie in instalinents of Ry, 41.67
#akhs started from Maoveh 2oy with interest @ Base vate + obps. w.ef 01 December, 2016, interest rate
Benchimak bas been vevised to MOLR + 25 bps, Taterest for current vear is in the range of 8.35% - 8.495% pa
1) Tenn Loan of Rs, Loon o0 Lakhs {ukul onJanuary 19, 2615 is repavable in instalments of Rs. 41.67 Lakhs
started from March 2017 with interest & Base rate + 40hps. w.e.f o1 Devember, 2016, interest rate benchmark
has been revised te MCLR + 25 bps. Interest for cuzrent vear iy in the rasyge of % - 8.05% pa.

Ferm Lean of s, 1,300.00 Lakhs taken on Jaonuasy 11, 2016 is repavable in instadizents of Rs. 62,50 Lakls
started from March 2087 with interest @@ Basa tate + gobps. w.e.f o Decamber, 2016, intevest vate benehark
has been vevised ti MCER + 25 bps. Intevest for vuzvent year is in the vnge of 8.35% - B.95% pa.

b} Ferm Loan of Re. Looo.op Lakhis taken on Febroary 10, 2006 Is repavable in instalments of Rs. 4167 Lakhs
started from March 2017 with interest @& Base rate + 4obps. w.e.f 01 December, 2016, interest rate benchinark
hos been revised to MOLR + 25 bps. Intersst fur enrrent vear is in the range of 8.35% - 8.65% paw.

a) Term Lean of Rs. Looo.00 L\kh.\ taken on March 13, 2016 i repavabie i instalments of Rs. 41.67 Lakhs
started from March 2087 with interest ¢& Base rate + 4obps. w.ef o1 December, 2016, interest rate henchmark
has been vevised to MICLR + 25 bps. Interest for entvent vear is in the range of 8.15% - 8.95% p.a.

f} Term Loan of Rs. 770.00 Lakhs taken on May 07, 2016 is repayable in instalments of Ry, 32.08 Lakhs
started from Mareh 2017 with interest @ Base vate + 4obps. woef o Decemher, 2016, interest te benchinark
hias been revised te MCLR + 25 bps. Interest for eacrent year is in the range of 8.35% - 8.95% p.a.

3) The Term Loan 4 from HDFC Bank is repavabie tn o4 quarterly instaltnesnts within 8 vears with 2 yess
moratorinim frone the date of exch drawdown,

aY Term Lown of Re. 1,o000.00 Lakhs taken on March 31, 2016 is cepayable in instalmeuts of Rs. 41.67 Lakhs
starting from June 2018 with intetest 67 Base rute + 4obps. w.e.f 01 December, 2016, inle;‘e\‘t rate henchmark
huss been vevised to MCLR + 235 bps. Interest for curvent yeur is in the range of 8.35% - 8.95% p.a

h) Term Loan of Rs. 7,000.00 Lakhs taken on July 28, 2016 is repavable in instalinents of Rs. ‘)1.67 Lakhs
starting fromn Octoher 2018 with interest @ Base rate + qobps. wef o1 December, 2016, interest rate
benchinark has been revised to MCLR + 23 bps. Interest for current vear is in the vange of 8.35% - 3.95% p.a.
&} Term Loan of Bs. 634.00 Lokhs taken on Aughst g, 2016 is vepavable iu instadments of Rs. 26.8:3 Lakhs
starting from November 2018 with inters: se rate + gobps. weef o1 December, 2016, interest rate
benchmark has been revised to MCLR + bps Interest for rurrent vear is in the range of 8.35% - 8.95% pa.
4) the Termn Loan 5 from HDFC Bank is repayable in 29 Ouarterdy instalments within 8 years with 2 venrs
weratorium from the first drawdown.

Term Loan of Rs. o Crove taken on August 11, 2016 is vepayable tn instalinents of Rs. 41,67 Lakhs started
frosm Mareh 2017 with intevest @ Buse rate + obps vweef 01 December, 2015, intezest rats benchmawk has
hesn revised o MCOLR + 25 bps. Tnterest for cvrrent year s in the range of 8.35% - 8.05% pa.

£

b} Vehicle Finance Loan from HDFC Bank of Rs. 28¢.72 Lakbs (31-Mareh-  [The Yehicle Loan from HDFC Bank is vepayable in 46 Monthiy instakinents.
1 Rs. 376,26} is seeured by way of hypothecation of trailes purchased a) Vehiele Loan of Re. 376.26 Lakhs taken on Febraacy 23, 2018 is repayable in instalinents of Rs. 663,540
against the same. stawting froms Aprii 2018,

<) Buvers’ Creddit from HDFC Bak munounting to Rs. 492,08 Lakhs {March $Buvers Credit of Rs. 402,08 Lakhs is repavable in July 2019, The intsrest rate is LIBOR + 0.30%.
at, 2018 Rs. 505.59 Lakhs) is secured by ficst exclusive charge on all the
assets (fixed and corrent, present and future) of the Company.

The caveying anounts of fireocial and non-Anancial assets pledued as security for curent and nor-cerent borvowings are disclosed in note 36,
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GATEWAY RAIL FREFGHT LIMITED
Notes gunexed to and forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 3x barch 2080

14

As at Asat
31dlarch 2019 3t March 28
Rugpees in Fakhy Rupees in Lakhs
Secured
Overdraft from bank*® 540,23 496,06
Buvers' Credit from Bank with eriginad maturity with less 1 vear {Refer Note 12c} Jo2.08 505.59
1,033.28 1,001.65

“Loan repayable on demausd. Outstanding overdmdt cary an wverage interest rate of * MCLE -+ 05 bps’ (31 March 2018; " MCLR + 25 bpx'} and iy secured by first exclusive charge on all

asgets.

TRAREPAXABLES
B . . . 3L 85,88
- Gutstaneling <daes of Mlicro Enterprises amd Small Enterprises [Refer Note below] 106 1588
Sl . .
-- Outstancling <dues of Creditors other than Micre Enterprises and Small Enterprives 428350 BBz
4.414.56 $: 09430

Note

There are no Micro and Smoall Enterprises, to whom the Company owes dues, which are sutstanding for more tan 43 diays at the Balance Sheet date, The informution has been detennined
1o the sxtent such parties conld be identified on the basks of the information available with the Company regarding the status of supphers under the MSMED (Refer Note 38).

Trcle pagables are non-intevest beactng and are sovmally settled i the noge of £t 380 davs teans,
For explasation in the company’s eredit visk management provesy, refer note 28,

Current mmaturities of long tenw debt from Banks (Refer Note 12) : 3:350.50 272396
Current maturities of HOFC YVehicle Loan (Refer Note 12) G4.30 86.59
Retentiom Money/ Depasits from Creditors for Tangibie Assets 477 15:3.14
(rher Payables

== Creelitors for Taugible and Intangible Assots LW 48603
- Emplovees 244,90 214673
-- Direetors remuneration 1,036.06 417.7¢
Uneluimed Dividend .86 -

Auetion Surplus

503570 4,123.08
Advanees from Customers 1,029.64 662,57
rher Payables:
-- Statatery dues 7H7.36 68678
1L817.00 £340-35
GOVERNMENT GRANT (EFCGY
Government Graat (EPCG)
Cpening Balanee +85.73 56978
Acldition 86.05 -
s:- [neome Booked 20,7 Sa.04
Closing Balance 44204 485.72
Current Grant (Income to be baoked in 2 months) 83.07 84.04

Non- Current Grant 1358.97 401.68




GATEWAY RAIL FREIGHT LIMITED
Notes annexed to and forming part of the Finaucial Statements for the vear ended 31 Macch 2019

19 REVENUE ¥ROM OPERATIONS

Year ended Year ended
21 March 2019 3t March 208
Notes Rupees in Lakhs Rupees in Eakhs
Sale of Services
-~ Rail Transport 65,579 48 62,932.59
-- Road Transport 5.388.33 5,216.46
-- Comtainer Storage, Handling and Grownd Rent ,502.55 #,320.45
Auetion [acome 138.34 123.94
Other Operating Reveuues
Export incentive (SEIS) 6,0713.00
Rent 194.76
Total revenue from continuing operations B86,741.46 78.879.96
20 g ME

Interest Income

- Interest on Fixed Deposit with Banks - Gross a(c), 6£d), 6(e) 74.21 §7.12
Unwinding of Discount on Security Depasit 6{e} 4.82 4.44
Liabilities/ Provisions no longer required Written back 102 86 £21.13
Sale of Scrap 21.53 £0.69
Miscellaneous Tncome 47.32 51.83
Praovision for Doubtful Ground Rent written back (Net) &ib) - 32.11
Gair on fair valuation of financial assets recognised at fuir value through profit or loss G() 22.09 27779
Gain on Sale of Lnvestment in Mutual Funds 6(x) 57252 752.44
Dividend [ncome on Investment in Mutual Funds measured at Fair Value

6(a) 27.67 -
through Profit and Loss
Foreign Exchange Gain 20.95 -
Government Grant 121 12G.73 B4.048
Total other income 1,023.65 1,391.57

21 OPERATING EXPENSES

Rail Transport {Refer Note (i} below) 48,000.00 47.643.01
Road Transport {Rafer Note (i) below) 6,G59.47 5.494.12
Container Storage, Handling and Repairs {Refer Note {iii) below) 1,647.80 £661.30
Auction Expenses 48.68 24.88
Total Operating Expenses 56,749.94 54.823.40
(i} Details of Rail Transport

Rail Haulage Charges 45,937.88 44,048.91
Rake Hiring Charges OO 251.06
Incentives 1,032.02 G62.85
Others £,357.20 1,289.29
Total Rail Transport 43.999.00 47.6:43.01
{ii} Details of Read Transport

Trip Expenses 842,04 2,502.01
FPrailer Hiring Charges 1,350.08 1,207.10
Trailer Maintenance Charges 1,160.04 1,113.62
Trailer Drivevs Salary 555-99 566.00
Others 127.92 105.30
Total Road Transport 6,054.97 .12

(iit} Details of Container Storage, Handling and Repairs

Equipment Handling Charges 343.50 586.73
Labour Charges 449.34 422.08
Survevor Expenses 1366.89 326.16
Internad Shifting Charges 144,40 232.87
Cthers 88.76 8u.53
Total Container Storage, Handling and Repairs 1,647.89 1,661.39
22 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS fIXPENSES
Salaries, Alowances and Bouus 3,620.14 2,566.26
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 124.33 11638
Gragnity 13 62.05 4917
Staff Wellare S798 86.30
Total Employee Benefits Expenses 3.893.10 2,818,111
23 EPRE A N EXPENSES
Depreciation an Preperty, Plant and Equipment 3 5.472.32 332657
Amortisation of Intangible Assets 4 25309 260.60
Total Depreciation And Amortisation Expenses 3.742.31 5.589.5%




GATEWAY RAIL FREIGHT LIMITED

Notes annsxed teand foondog pact of the Ficancial Stadements for the year ended 20 March 2019,
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Notes Rupees in Lakhs Rupees in Eakhs
24 u o] 3
R
== Interest on Tersn Loans 12 RELER L727.46
-- Interest on Buvers” Credit 1} Al 19 87
== Interest on Cosh Credit i 10,24 3424
-~ Tnterest on Vehicle Loans 12 1h.e7 -
-- Premimn Payable on redempiion of Compound Financiad [istrwment s ¢
(inchuding vnswinding of disconnty ) 294
Tatal Finance Costs 1,400.31 2,035.51
25 OTHER EXPENSES
Power and Fuel 1099.13 947.90
Rent 638,45 650.75
Rail License Fees 308,48 38074
Rates and Taxes 48.66 2418
Repairs and Maintenance
-« Plant and Eguipment (irchuling Yard Eguipments) 568.43 47787
-- Buildings/ Yard 124.70
-- Others a8g.12
Insurance 23508
Customs Staff Expenses 115.23
Printing and Stationery 38.41
Travelling and Convevance 440997
Veliicle Maintenance Expenses 12.84
Communication 83,45 89.55
Advertisement and Business Promotion 137260 140,06
Corporate Srcial Responsibility [Refer Note 2564)] 17062 182.05
Legal and Professionad Charges 710.22 5149.63
Direvtor Sitting Fees 83.00 4035
Security Charges 350,08 519,41
Auditors” Remuneration {Refer nots 25(h1}
- Audlit Faes 32.00 3000
-- Out of Pocket Expenses 2.00 LOL
Provision for Doubtful Debts (net) 6{b} Q0.9G 6.56
Provisien for Doubttul Ground Rent {net) 6(e) 2138 -
£rovision for Boubtful advances/ Deposits 6o} 8 - 12,006
Eoss on Sale of PPE EX T 0.20
Foreign hange Loss {net) - 7137
Bank Charges 20.29 40.83
Total Other Expenses 6.000.47 524050
25{a}
Contribution to Bharat Lok Shiksha Parishad 10.00 10.00
Promotion of Edueation 4.56 7O
Contribution to Prime Minister Relief Fund 5.00 10,00
Rural Development Projects 15106 154.55
Total Corporate Social Responsibility expenditure 170.62 182,05
Amonnt requicel to be speut as pec seetion 133 of the Act 16511 18157

Amount spent during the year on

Construction) acquisition of any asset 1306
O purposes other than above 19.56
0.6z
25(b)y  Retails of pavment to anditors
Payment to anditors
Auedit Fee 41.00 15.00
Limited Review 1100 .00
In other capacities
Reimbursement of expenses 4.00 LOL

Total payment to auditors 34.00 30,08




GATEWAY RAIL FREIGHY LIMITED
Notes annexed to and forming par

Year ended
31 March 2019
Rupees in Lakhs

Year ended
31 darch 2018
Rupees in Lakhs

26 INCOMETAX EXPENSE

{a} Income tax Expenses
Current Tax

Current Tax on profits for the year 2,815.94 L.BY3.67
Adjustment for curcent tax of prior peciods - -
Total Current tax expenses 2,815.04 158!;';.67
Deferred Tax
Decrense/ {Increase) in deferred ta ass 23,50
{Decrease)/ increase in deferred tax liabilities (9.9}
Total deferred tax expense/(henefit) (55.84)
Income tax expenses 2,760,410
Tncome tax expense is athiibutablie to
Profit from eontinning operationy 2,700,110 1,4:40.28
Profit from discontinued oparations - -
Totil 2,760.10 1,430.38
Disclosed under
Statement of Profit and Loss 2,785.65 1,437.36
Other Comprehensive lncome (25.55) (.08}

. 2,760.10 1,430.38
{b) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’™s tax rate;
Profit from continuing operations before income tax expense 13.844.85 ,735.07
Profit from discontivusd eperatinns before incos tax expense - -
Total 13,844 85 9.735.27
Tax at the Indian tax rate of 34.044% (3t-March-18: 34.608%) 4,837.04 3,360.18
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (taxable) in
calculating taxabie income

Tax Amount Tax Amannt
-~ Interest on Zere coupon redeemable preference shaves - 3477
-~ Lorparate sovind responsibitity expenditure 59.62 63.00
-~ Dividemd invome from mutual fund {9.67) -
-- Diterved Tax ot crented where it is expected to reverse withio 505,01
sl

tax heliday pericd

-~ Minimum Alternate Tax wrilten off

-~ Amortisation of prepaid rent as per Ind AS

- Interest on security deposit as per Ind AS

--Income that is exempt from tax u/s 8olA of Income Tax Act, 1961
~Tax Benefit U/s 80 G

- Other ftems (20.64)
Income Tax Expenses 2.260.10 1,330.38
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GATEWAY RARL FREIGIHT LIMITED

Notes annexed to and forming pact of the

30

I Statements for the year ended 3 Mavch 2019

SEGMENTLINFO

110

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker {"CODBM"} of the
company. The CODM, whe is responsible for allocating eesources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identitied as the Managing
Diirector of the company. The company has identified one reportabde segment “inter-Modad Logistics” i.e, based on the information reviewed by CODM.
Thus, the segment revenae, segment results, total carrving amount of segment assets and segment labifities ks as reflected in these financial statement as of
aned for the vear ended March 31, 2019,

{a) Description of segments and principal activities

The Company is engaged in business of inter-modat logistics. It provides container logistics solution between major Indian ports amd Inland Container
Trepots (ICD) by providing rail senvces for Export, Impost and Domestic containerised cargo, integrated with road transportation, transit and bonded
warehousing, refeigerated container facilities and other value added services,

{b} Segment revenue/results
The company operates as a single segment. The segment revenue is measured in the same way as in the statement of profit or loss

Segmment - Inter-Modal Logisties

31 March 2029

331 March 2018

Revenue from
external custormers

Revenue from
external customers

Segment revenue

86.741.48

78.879.96

Segment results

Profit before Tax

13.017.98

975544

Less: Tax expenses

2,785.65

L3730

Net prefit before non-controlling interest

13.132.33

5.218.08

The company is domicited in Eadia. The amount of its revenue from external custoiners broken down by location of the customers

below.

is shown in the table

Revenue from external customers

31 March 2019

33 March 2018

India B86,741.46 78.879.96
Outsicle Ilia - -
Totad 36,741,460 78.879.96

No customer individually contnbuted to 10% or more of total revenie.

Segment assets and Segment habilities

41 March 2019

31 March 2018

Segment assets - India 9:2,818.58 100,952,00
Segment liabilities - [ndia 260,087.41 27.575.86




GATEWAY RAIL FREIGHT LIMITED

Notes annexed to and forming part of the Financial Statements for the vear ended 31 March 2010
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(i)

{ii)

¢iii}

32

CONTIGENT LIABILITI ES AND CONTINGENE ASSESTES

Contingent Liabilities
The compuny had contingent Habilities ab March 31, 2010 in respect of the following:

Particulars

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

Bank Guarantees and Continaity Bonds executed in favonw of The President of India thzowgh the
Commissioners of Excise and Customs and Sales Tax

249,61L.67

353,427.00

Clabmys made by the parties not acknowledged as debts:

- Container Corporation of india [Refer Note (i) below]

Not_Ascertainable

Not_Ascertainable

- Northern Ratlway [Refer Note (i) betow]

148.94

148.94

The Company and its Hokling Company (Joint venturer till 29 March 2019 ant the holding thereafter), Gateway Distriparks Limited ("GDL"} are involved in
an arbitration proceeding with Container Corporation of india Linzited ("Concor™) in respect of agreements entered into by the parties for operation of
container trains trom the [aland Container Depot and Rail Siding of the Company at Garhi Harsaru, Gurgaon. Coneor has mised clabms on the Company
ind GDL on virious issues in respect to the atoresaid agreements. Based on legal opinion, the Management has taken a view that these claims are at a
prefiminary stage and the question of maintainability of the alleged disputes as raised by Concor mader the aforesaid agreements is yet to be determined and
are not sustainable. Peading conclusion of the arbitration, the parties are maintaining “status quo” in respect of the eperations at Garhi Harsarg, Gurgaon.

The Railway Authorities had deducted Rs. 148,94 Lakhs towards Siding & Shunting charges for financial vear 2010-11, however letter has been received in
April'ty from Radbway Authorities that the deduction made by Raitways is not justified and will be refonded bisck to the compiny. Flowever tll new the
Company has not received the moaey, hence the same has been disclosed as "Claims macle by the parties not acknowledged as debts’. The matter is under
arbitration.

There are numerous irterpretative issues reluting to the Supreme Cowrt (SC) judgement dated 28th February, 201¢ on Provident Fuad (PF) on the inclusion
of allowances for the purpese of PF contribntion as well as its applicability of effective dinte. The Company is evaduating and seeking legal inputs regazding
various interpretative issues and its impact.

COMMITMENTS:
a) Capital Commitments:

Capital expenditure contracted {net of capital advance) for st the end of the reporting period bat not recognised o Habilities as follows:

Particulars 31 March 2019 32 March 2018

Property, plant and equipment: Net of Capital Advance of Rs. 1.40 Lakhs (31-March-18: Rs. 265.37

Lakhs) 699.14

LOL57

b} Non-Cancellable operating leases:

The Company has taken office premises and land under non-cancellable operating lease and lease rent of Rs. 44.82 Lokhs {31-March-18 Rs. 42.35 Lakhs) has
been ineluded nader the head "Other Expenses - Rent’ uadsr Note “257 in the Statement of Profit and Lo, On reaewal, the terms of the leases are
renegotiated.

Particulars 31 March 2019 3t March 2018

Commitment for minimum lease payvments in relation to nen - cancelluble operating leases are
pavable as follows

Within one vear 36,39 4.8
Later than one vear but no later than five vears 193.38 193.72
Later than five veury 545.64 596,88

Rental expenses relating to operating leases

Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Minimur Lease Payments 444,82 42.35

Total Rental Expenses reluting to operating leases 44.82 42.35

I addition, the Company has entered into various cancellable leasing arrangements for office premises and land in respect of which an amount of Rs.
$03.63 Lakhs {(31-Marh-18 Rs. 507.43 Lakhs) has been appropriately incnded nnder ‘Cther Expenses - Rent’ under Note “257 in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.




GATEWAY RAIL FREIGHT LIMITED
Notes annexed o and forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2o1g

33 RELAFED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Related Party Disclosures, as required by Ind AS 24, "Related Party Disclosures”, are given below:

{A) Holding Company {from 30 March 2019)
The Company is jointly controlled by the following entities:

Place of Ownership Interest

Name Type . .
* 2 incorporation

3t March 201G

Gutewuy Distripurks Limited {GDL)
Joint venturer Hll 2 Maceh 2019 and the [ Holding Company India 66.930%
holding Company thereafter,

(B} Juoint Venturers (till 29 March 2019)
The Company is jointly controlied by the following entities:

Name Type Place of Ownership Interest
B ¥E incorporation 31 March 2e18
Gateway Distriparks Limited (GDL} Joint Venturer India 50.001%
Biuckstone GPY Capital Partners . »
fuckstone GPY Capits i Joint Venturer Manriting 49.g00%

(Mansithes) V-H Limited

€€)  Jointly Controlled Entity

Flace of Business | % of Ownership

Name of the Entity interest Relationship Accounting

Method

2

Contuiner Guteway Limited India
Total Equity Accounting Investiments

Joint Venture Equity dlethod

(D) Subsidiary Companies of Holding Company
Galeway Bast India Private Limiteds
Gateway Pistriparks {Kevula) Limited#
Chandra CFS and Terminal Operators Private Limiteds

# There are no transaction with the company during the year

(E) Entities in which directors have control/ significant influence
Mewsprint Trading and Sakes Covporation (NTSC)
Perfect Communications Private Limited
Snowrpan Logistics Limited

{F) Directors of the Company
{i) Executive Directors
¥r. Prem Kishan Dass Gupta {Chairman and Managing Divector)
Mr. Sumvic Gupta (Joint Managing Director)
dlr. Sachin Surendra Bhanushali (Chiel Executive Qfficer)

i) Independent and Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Tshaan Gupta £ Non-Executive Director)
Mrs. Mamta Gupta (Non-Executive Dirvector}
Mr. Gurdeep Singh (Non-Executive Divector) upto 20 March zo19
BIr. Neers) Mohan (Non-Executive Director) upto 29 March 2019
A, Ramaswamy Kumar (Non-Executive Divector) upte 24 Mareh 2019
AMr. Himanshu Dodeja (Non-Executive Director) upte 29 March 2019
dr. Shabbir Hussunbhad (hidependent Divector)
dr. Arun Kumar Gupta (Tndependent Director)

Particulars 31 March 2019 3t March 2018
{i) Executive Directors
Remuneration 199.53 263,49
Post-emploviment gratuity and leave benefits 9.69 26,45
| Erector Sitting Fees 24.00 12,00
Comnnission 1,025,040 475.00

{ii) Non Executive and Independent Director
Sitting fees & Copnnission 105.00 1253.00
Total compensation 1053822 739.04
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GATEWAY RAIL FREIGHT LIMITED
Notes annexed to and forming parct of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

34

36

2 38 SHARE

The number of shares used i computing Basic and Diluted Earnings per Share is the weighted average number of shares cutstanding during the year,

(a) Reconciliation of earnings used in calculating earnings per share

Particulars

31 March zo1g

31 March 2018

Profit astributable ko the eqnity holders of the company used in caleulating basic earnings per share

£1,084.75

8,3014.89

(b) Weighted average number of shares used as the denominator

Particulars

a1 March 2019

31 March 2018

Weighled average number of erdinary equity shares

2,015.00

2,015.00

Weighted average number of ordinary equity shares te be issued upen conversion of compulsory
convertible preference shares

2,006.96

2,0006.96

Fobal Number of shares used as the denominator for caleulating earning per share

4,021.96

4,021.90

() Basic and Diluted earnings per share

Particulars

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

Total Basic and Piluted earnings per share attributable to the equity helders of the company

2.76

.06

(d) Information concerning the classification of securities

Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS): 120,000,000 Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. 24.65 each were issued in August 2010
to Blackstone GPV Capital Partners {Mauritins) V-H Limited (Blackstone) against cash, During the tear, the Copmays’ CCPS have been acquired by GDL.
These CCPS holders shall be entitled to non-cumulative dividend of 0.0001% of the face value of CCPS, as and when declared by the Company’s Board prior
to and in preference to the pavment of any dividend on the Equity Shares. The Helders of CCPS shall also be entitled to pasticipate in dividends issued by
the Company over and above the Preferred Dividend on an as-if converted basis. Subjeet te applicable taws, GDL holding the CCPS shali have the voting
rights to vote on all matters to be decided by the Company ag if the GDL CCPS had been converted into Equity Shares at the Conversion ratio. These CCPS
reprasents 2,006.96 Lakhs underlving equity shares which will be issued to the holders on the date of conversion.

CoHlateral against borrowings
All current and non-current assets of the company ave pledged as security against debt facilities from the leader. For carvving amount of assets pledged as
security refer note 36,

The earrying amounts of assets pledged as security for current and noa - current borrowings are :

Particulars Notes 31 March 2019 a1 March 2018

Current Assets

Financial Assets

First Charge

- Current Investments Gla) 2, O 9,782.18

- Trade Receivables 6(b) 7.498.00 =.487.30

- Cash and Cash Equivalents 6{c) 57342 3.499.49

» Bunk Balances other than above Hid) 2.86 B

- Others Financial Assets 6(e) 408.23 AT AL

- Others Current Assets 10 74125 805.74
11,545.80 22,202.2!

Total Current Assets pledged as Security

Non-Current Assets

First Charge

Property, Plaat and Equipment 3 76,039.18 79,0312

Capital Work-in-Progress 3(a) 159.5¢ 114168

Other intangibie ass 4 2,306.95 2,566.94

Other Financial Assets 6(e) 660,77 376,20

Income tax assets (net) [ 047.70 729.09

Other Non-cusrent Assets 8 558.61 8131.90

Total Non-Current Assets pledged as Security 81,272.76 84.749.83

Total Assets pledged as Security 2,518,560 106,552.06




GATEWAY RAIL FRETIGHT LIMIFED

Notes annexed to and for

37

38

39

40

41

DISCLOSURE OF UN]

ing part of the Financiad Statements for the vear ended 21 Mazch 2019

The foreign curreney cutstanding balances that have not been hedgad by any derivative instrwment or otherwise as at March 31, 2019 are as fellows:

Foreign Foreign INR Amount | Foreign Currency INR Amount
Currency Currency {In Lakhs) Amount (In Lakhs)
Particulars Denomination Amonunt 21 March 2019 {In Lakhs) 3t March 2018
{In Lakhs) 31 March 2018
: 31 March 2019
Buyers' Credit LURO 6.10 48318 5.10 5014.47
Interest Accrued bt not due on Buvers' Credit EURO 0.12 9.80 0.01 1.12

DUES TO MICRO AND SMALL ENTERPRISES

The Micre, Small and Medium Enterprises have been identified by the Company from the available information, which has been refied upon by the auditors.
According to such identification, the disclosures as per Section 22 of “The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Developiment (MSMED) Act, 2006 are us follows:

Particulars 3t March 2019 3t March 2008
Non-current Current Non-current Current

“The principal amount azd the interest due theveon remaining unpaid o any

supplier

- Principai amount - 131.06 - 185.88

- Interest thereon - - - -

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in ters of section 183, along with

the amounts of the pavment macde to the supplier bevond the appointed day. . . B .

The amount of interest due and pavable for the vear of delay in making

payvment (which have been paid but bavond the appointed day during the

year) but without adding the interest specified under this act. . . B :

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid, - - - -

The amount of fmther interest remaining due and payable even in the

succeecling vears, until such date when the interest dues above are actually

paid to the small investor, - - - “

The above information has been determined to the extent such parties could be identified on the basis of the information available with the Company regarding the
status of suppliers under the MSMED.

The Company had issued 1,150 lakhs Zero Coupon Redesmable Preference Shaves (ZCRPS) of Rs. 10/- each to Gateway Distripazks Limited{GDL), joint venturer en
July 11, 2011 These ZCRPS was entitied to redemption premiam ranging from Rs. 3.38 per ZCRPS in October 1, 2015 to Rs. 22.07 per ZCRPS on October 1, 2030.
Puring previous year, the Company redeemed 1,150 Lakh zere coupon redeemable preference shaves for a total consideration of Rs. 17,046.94 Lakhs as per the
agreement which is pursuant to provision of Section 55 and other relevant provisions of Companies Act 2013. The Company had created a Capital Redemption
Reserve account of Bs. 11,560 Lakhs equivalent to the nominal amount of the ZCRPS by utilizing the retainad earnings.

Blackstone GPV Capital Partners (Mauritius} VH Limited ("Blackstone"} had invested in 1,200 lakh Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares ("CCPS”) and 100
equity shares of the Company. During the quarter ended June, 2018, the Company and GDL had entered into a Share Purchase Agreement (SPA) with Blackstone for
acquiring the entire CCPS and equity shares held by Blackstone in the Company. The acquisition was expected to be completed by September 28, 2018, which was
further extended up to December 28, 2018 viz-a-viz amendment agreement to the SPA dated October 04, 2018. Out of the total agreed consideration of Rs.68,496
lakhs, Rs.12,499 lakhs was discharged on October 04, 2018 and 219 bakk CCPS were acquived. The balance consideration was to be paid by December 28, 2018,

‘The transaction couid not be completed by December 28, 2018 due to un-contemplated events in the debt market resulting into delay in raising necessary debt for
the transaction, consequently Blackstone sent a notice of arbitration at Singapore Enternational Arbitration Council dated Becemnber 29, 2018,

The Company, GDIL and Blackstone had entered into a new SPA dated January 235, 2019 for purchase of balance 981 lakh CCPS and 100 equity share keld by
Blackstone, at a total consideration of Rs.58,066 lakhs. As per the new SPA, Rs.3,079 lakhs of the balanee consideration was paid on February 01, 2019 and the
balance cash consideration of Rs. 54,087.35 Jakhs was paitt on Mareh 29, 2019 viz-a-viz new share purchase agreement dated January 25, 2019. The Acbitration
notice sent by Blackstone under Share Subscription and Shareholders Agreement entered between the Company, GDI1, aud Blackstone was withdeawn after the
pavment of balance purchase consideration on March 29, 2019, Post-acquisition of the shares acquired from Blackstone, GDL became the Holding Company with
59.93% sharehelding as on March 31, 2019 with effect from March 29, 2019.

Disclosure pursuant to IND AS-8 " Accounting Polictes, change in accounting estimates and errors” (specified under Sec 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read with
rule 7 of Companies £ Accounts) Rules, 2015) are given below:
Pollowing are the restatement made in carrent vear's financial statements pertaining to previous vear

3t March 2018 3t March 2018

Nature (Signed)

Particulars

Assets

Trasde recetvable Reclssification ltems 7,387.30 7. 782,60

Eguity and Liabilities

Reclassificatinn Ttems
Reclagsification Items

Trade payable other than MSMED 2,008.42 1,604.69

Other Current Liabilities

1,349.35 1,048.38

The above reclassification in the previous vear's monbers have been made for better presentation in the Gaancial statements and to confirm to the curvent wd:
clussification/disclosure. This does not have any impact on the profit & EBITDA andl henee no change in the basic and difuted earning per share of prev oy
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Standavds issued but not yet effective up to the date of Financial Statements

Standards issued but not yet effective:

The amendments to standards tat are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance of the Company’s financial

statements are disclosed below, The Company intends to adopt these standards, if applicable, when they become effuctive.

The ¥inistry of Corporate Affairs (M€CA) has issued the Companies {Indian Acconnting Standands) Amendment Rules, 2017 and

Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2018 amending the following standard:

Ind AS 116 Leases

Ind A8 £16 Leases was notified by MCA on 30 March 2019 and it replaces Ind A5 g7 Leases, incloding appendices thereto, Ind AS 116 is effective for anrual
periods beginning en or after 1 April 2019 Indd AS 116 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosnre of feases and requires
tessees to account for all leases under a single on-balance sheet maodel similae to the accounting for finznce leases under Ind AS 17. The standaid inclodes two
recognition exempticns for tessees — leases of Tow-value’ assets (e.g., personal computers) and short-term leases (i.e., leases with 2 lease term of t2 nonths or
less). At the commencement date of a lease, a Jessee will recognise a Hability to make lease payments (i.e,, the lease liability) and an asset representing the right
to use the underlving asset during the lease term (i, the right-of-use asset}. Lessees will be required to seprarately recognise the interest expense on the lease
liabitity and the depreciation expense o the right-of-use assel. Lessees will be also required to remeasure the tease linbility upon the ocourrence of certain
events (e.g., a change in the lease term, a change in (uture lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine these payments). The
tessee will gareratly recognise the amount of the remeasurement of the leage Hability as o adiustpent to the right-of-use agget. Lessor accounting under Ind AS
116 is substantiaily unchanged from today’s accounting under Ind AS 17. Lessors will continue to classify all leases using the same classification prineiple as in
Ind AS 17 and distinguish between two types of lerses: operating and finance leases. The Company intends to adopt these standards from t April 2z019. The
impact on adoption of Ind AS 116 on the Anancial statements is given below. Ind AS 116 also reguires lessees and lessors to make more extensive disclosures than
under Ind AS 7.

Transition to Ind AS 116

The Company is proposing to use the ‘Maodified Retrospective Approach’ for transitioning to Ind AS 116, and take the cumulative adjustment to retained
earaings, on the date of initial application (April 1, 20:9). Accordingly, comparatives for the vear ending or ended March 3t, 2019 will not be retrospectively
adjusted. The Company hag elacted certain available practical expedients on trapsitior.

The company is evaluating the requirements of the amendment and the effeet on the Anancial statements is being evaluated.

For S.R, Batliboi & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Acconntants Gateway Rail Freight Limited
ICAT Firm registration number. : 3oio03E/E3z00005
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